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Donegal Group Inc. is an insurance holding

company offering property and casualty insur-

ance in the Mid-Atlantic, Southeast and Midwest

states through its wholly owned subsidiaries,

and through a pooling agreement with its affili-

ate, Donegal Mutual Insurance Company.

Our wholly owned subsidiaries include Atlantic

States Insurance Company, Le Mars Insurance

Company, Peninsula Indemnity Company, The

Peninsula Insurance Company and Southern

Insurance Company of Virginia.

We offer full lines of personal, farm and com-

mercial products – including businessowners,

commercial multiperil, automobile, homeown-

ers, boatowners, farmowners, workers’ com-

pensation and other coverages. The Donegal

Group conducts business through a network of

independent insurance agencies.
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PERFORMANCE GENERATES RESULTS

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Net premiums earned $265,838,594 $196,792,696 $185,841,193 $167,769,854 $151,646,199
Investment income 15,906,728 13,315,936 14,581,252 15,885,544 16,394,747
Total revenues 287,788,638 214,992,328 203,803,561 185,163,623 170,581,587
Net income 31,614,269 18,293,976 12,002,722 5,818,131 8,836,780
Net income per common share
Basic 2.40 1.91 1.32 .65 1.01
Diluted 2.32 1.85 1.31 .64 1.01

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total assets $735,415,401 $602,036,042 $501,218,164 $456,632,372 $426,008,780
Stockholders’ equity 242,704,314 208,649,232 133,182,850 120,928,349 114,129,591
Book value per share 18.04 16.29 14.52 13.44 12.88
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In yet another year of challenge for property and casualty

insurance companies, we are pleased to report that our 2004

results represent the strongest earnings performance in our

history. Donegal Group once again outperformed the indus-

try as a whole by a significant margin, providing further con-

firmation of the soundness of our conservative operating

philosophy and prudent long-term growth strategy.

We are very pleased that Donegal Group was able to gen-

erate record profitability in 2004, rising above the chal-

lenges presented to our industry during the year by an

unusually active hurricane season, inappropriate prac-

tices by some large insurance brokerage firms and the

cost and effort related to Sarbanes-Oxley compliance. We

have carefully monitored our catastrophe exposure over

the years, as proven by the relatively modest impact of

multiple severe weather events on our bottom line. We do

not write the very large commercial accounts or deal with

large brokerage firms where allegations of improprieties

have surfaced, and we have always adhered to best prac-

tices and compliance with current laws and regulations in

our dealings with our agents and policyholders. We  devot-

ed significant effort during 2004 to compliance with the

Sarbanes-Oxley mandates. Although it seemed that chal-

lenges were ever present, we maintained our operational

focus and continued our forward progress.

Our total revenues for 2004 were $287,788,638, a 33.9

percent increase over the $214,992,328 in revenues for

2003. Net income increased to a record $31,614,269, or

$2.32 per share on a diluted basis, in 2004,

compared to $18,293,976, or $1.85 per

share on a diluted basis, in 2003. Improved

underwriting profitability, along with an

extraordinary gain of $5.4 million related to

unallocated negative goodwill associated

with the January 2004 acquisition of Le

Mars Insurance Company, accounts for the

majority of the increase in our net income.

Our unprecedented 2004 GAAP combined

ratio of 93.1 percent improves on the excel-

lent 95.0 percent we posted in 2003, and

compares favorably to the projected statutory

T O  O U R  S T O C K H O L D E R S  A N D  F R I E N D S

Donald H. Nikolaus, President, left
Philip H. Glatfelter, II, Chairman of the Board, right
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We are pleased to report that 2003 represented a second

straight year of record earnings for the Donegal Group, with

2003 earnings representing a 52.4 percent increase from the

prior record year. We attribute our strong earnings perform-

ance to the culmination of our longstanding adherence to a

conservative underwriting philosophy and our disciplined

approach to the attainment of profitable growth.

Our industry as a whole experienced marked improvement

in a number of key metrics in 2003, and we believe there are

a number of underpinnings that suggest a continuation of

the current operating environment, especially in the geo-

graphic areas we serve and in the product lines we write.

For instance, in many ways our industry is still in recovery

mode. Rating agency downgrades continued to outnumber

upgrades by a wide margin during the year, indicating that

many carriers continue to suffer the effects of underpricing

during the soft market. A number of large national carriers

have taken corrective actions and earnings charges related

to adverse loss reserve development and other legacy issues.

Faced with an eroding capital base and limited opportuni-

ties to increase investment income, carriers must maintain

and increase premium rates in order to maintain ratings and

improve profit levels. Donegal Group is well positioned to

capitalize on the opportunities such an environment pres-

ents. Because of the nature of the classes of business we have

traditionally written, we have avoided many of the issues

that have plagued other insurance carriers. We are instead

keenly focused on the employment of the disciplined man-

agement approach that has led to our growth and financial

success.

Our total revenues for 2003 were $214,992,328, a 5.5 per-

cent increase over the $203,803,561 in revenues for 2002.

Net income increased significantly to $18,293,976, or $1.85

per share on a diluted basis, in 2003, compared to

$12,002,722, or $1.31 per share on a diluted basis, in 2002.

We enjoyed improved profitability primarily as a result of

reduction in our loss ratio from 69.6 percent in 2002 to 64.2

percent in 2003, despite the impact of a major weather

event, as Hurricane Isabel swept through our operating

regions in September.

Our excellent 2003 GAAP combined ratio of 95.0 percent

compares to the 99.6 percent we posted in 2002, and once

again significantly outpaces the projected statutory insur-

ance industry average combined ratio of 101 percent for the

year. The combined ratio is the key measure of profitability

from insurance underwriting and is a principal indicator of

the quality and rate adequacy of the book of business and the

expense efficiency in the operations of an individual insur-

Donald H. Nikolaus

President

Donald H. Nikolaus, President

Philip H. Glatfelter, II, Chairman of the Board
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insurance industry average combined ratio of 97.6 percent

for 2004. In spite of the impact of multiple severe weath-

er events in the third quarter, our loss ratio decreased to

61.7 percent in 2004, compared to 64.2 percent in 2003,

with this decrease representing the primary factor in our

improved combined ratio. The combined ratio is the key

measure of profitability from insurance underwriting and

is a principal indicator of the levels of underwriting disci-

pline and processing efficiency in the operations of an

individual insurance company. Underwriting profitability

– reflected in a combined ratio less than 100 percent – is

a key component of our operating strategy, and it remains

our goal to significantly outperform the industry as a

whole in this important financial measure.

Donegal Group continues to operate from a position of

financial strength, as evidenced by continued solid

growth in the underlying value of our stock. Our stock-

holders’ equity at year-end was $242,704,314, represent-

ing an increase of 16.3 percent over year-end 2003. Book

value per share increased to $18.04 per share at year-end,

an increase of 10.8 percent over our book value at

December 31, 2003.

We recognize and appreciate the steadfast efforts of our

independent agents and dedicated employees that have

enabled our past success and provide optimism for the

continuation of our positive momentum. We have assem-

bled a team of professionals who understand what it

takes to generate results. Our recently acquired sub-

sidiaries have contributed to our successful year, and we

continue to pursue additional acquisition candidates to

bolster our ongoing development as a strong contender

in the markets we serve.

We renew our commitment to build upon the trust of our

stockholders as we strive to meet the challenges the

future may hold. We believe that our heritage of financial

strength will continue to empower the effective perform-

ance of our sound operating strategies to generate results

that will lead to our mutual success.

Donald H. Nikolaus, President



Strength. Performance. Results. A simple progression that

describes the formula that Donegal Group has followed

since our inception.

STRENGTH – defined as the capacity or potential for

effective action. At Donegal Group, we have always

enjoyed a foundation of financial strength. We have built

upon the strong heritage of Donegal Mutual Insurance

Company, our founding institution that dates back to the

late 1800s and continues to be a strong affiliate in the

accomplishment of our growth. Our underwriting and

investment philosophies have allowed us to generate

favorable results and obtain the capital necessary to

enable our continued growth. Our solid balance sheet and

leverage ratios provide a strong foundation to enable

effective performance of our operating strategies.

PERFORMANCE – defined as taking action and carry-

ing it through to completion. Our performance over the

years has included the ongoing development of a conser-

vative underwriting culture, the implementation of a multi-

faceted growth strategy that incorporates organic growth

as well as growth by acquisitions, and the continuing

development and implementation of technological

advancements to improve the way we do business.
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RESULTS – defined as the outcome of a particular

course of action. We have consistently outperformed the

property and casualty insurance industry in measures of

underwriting profitability. We have expanded our fran-

chise to encompass three specific geographic marketing

regions. We continue to implement state-of-the-art tech-

nology to set ourselves apart from our competition and

improve our business.

Underlying financial strength empowers effective operat-

ing performance, which eventually leads to successful

results. We continue to fashion our business model

around this simple progression. As we enter 2005,

Donegal Group is a financially strong organization, con-

sistently endeavoring to deliver results that speak for

themselves. We look forward to the future with opti-

mism, building upon our foundation of financial strength

and firmly believing that successful results will follow

time-honored operating philosophies, sound business

practices and good old-fashioned hard work.

STRENGTH.  
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PRUDENT GROWTH THROUGH
REGIONAL MARKETING
We continue to follow a regional model in the sale and

servicing of our insurance products, believing this model

holds key advantages in the acquisition of quality premi-

um growth. Our branch office personnel are positioned to

offer specialized agency and customer service in their

local regions. Through centralizing many back office func-

tions from the various regions to our administrative head-

quarters, we maximize economies of scale and achieve

operating efficiencies.

We continue to market our products

to three distinct geographic regions,

which we refer to as Mid-Atlantic,

Southeast and Midwest. Our dis-

tribution system is growing in

each region, and we continue to

attract new agents to represent us

in key areas where we believe we can

obtain profitable growth.

Our Mid-Atlantic region incorporates the states of

Pennsylvania, Maryland, Delaware and New York. This

region contains our largest concentration of business,

and we continue to explore innovative methods to increase

our market share in this core marketing territory. Our

January 2004 acquisition of Peninsula Insurance Group

has increased our Mid-Atlantic representation and product

offerings. Our Southeast region incorporates a number 

of states, with Virginia, Georgia, North Carolina and

Tennessee representing our largest concentrations of

business in this region. We view the Southeast as one of

our primary growth areas, as we continue to expand our

product base and grow our distribution system in key

MID-ATLANTIC REGION

SOUTHEAST REGION

MIDWEST REGION

PERFORMANCE.



areas within the region. Our Midwest region currently

includes Ohio and the states serviced by Le Mars Insurance

Company, an Iowa-domiciled carrier that we acquired in

January 2004. We plan to expand our presence in this

region further by targeting acquisitions and/or affiliations

in other Midwestern states.

CONTINUING PURSUIT OF
ACQUISITIONS
Acquisitions have played a key role in our growth as an

organization, and we continue to pursue acquisition

opportunities that we believe will be a good fit within our

corporate group and provide further growth potential in

areas we have identified as profitable markets. Our multi-

faceted menu of acquisition methods provides a broad

range of acquisition possibilities, including mutual-to-

mutual transactions facilitated through our affiliation with

Donegal Mutual. We are committed to a disciplined acqui-

sition strategy to identify those candidates that fit the

specific profile that has worked for us in the past. We

worked steadily throughout the past year to assimilate

our January 2004 acquisitions of Le Mars Insurance

Company and Peninsula Insurance Group. As we enter

2005, we are in position to renew our focused pursuit of

additional acquisition candidates to bolster our growth

and expand our franchise.

UTILIZATION OF TECHNOLOGY
We are committed to maintaining cutting-edge technology

to allow us to compete in the marketplace. Over the past

several years, we implemented

imaging technology in both our

personal and commercial under-

writing units to enhance the

workflow and access to information for our employees

and agents. Our web site provides a wealth of resources to

our agents and customers, with additional functionality

being added continually. Our multi-year project to imple-

ment a fully-automated personal lines underwriting and

policy issuance system has been completed, and the sys-

tem is in the process of being rolled out to our entire

agency force. We refer to this state-of-the-art technologi-

cal advancement as “WritePro,” marketing the system to

our agents as “how professionals write personal lines

insurance.” WritePro is an automated system that allows

pricing of our products to be tailored to individual risk char-

acteristics, and provides a fully automated underwritten

quote within minutes. Upon acceptance of a quote, our

agents can immediately issue a policy and receive down-

loaded information directly into their agency management

RESULTS.
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system. The majority of these transactions occur with lim-

ited or no intervention by our personnel, thereby reducing

the overall transaction time and expense associated with

the underwriting of risks that meet our underwriting

guidelines. The automated processes built into the

WritePro system free our underwriters to manage our

book of business to a greater degree. Through real-

time access to quotes being generated, our underwrit-

ers are able to answer questions and provide input

during the quoting process, expanding their role

from that of a “gatekeeper” to becoming a valuable

resource to our agents. In conjunction with the

implementation of process changes enabled by

WritePro, we also announced changes in pricing and

products. We expanded our product offerings from that of

several tiers to literally hundreds of tiers based upon spe-

cific underwriting criteria. These changes broaden our

ability to attract and service a wider segment of our per-

sonal lines marketplace. Our technology, marketing and

underwriting personnel are coordinating their efforts to

train agency personnel to use this powerful underwriting

tool effectively. Rollout will be completed in Pennsylvania

in early 2005 and will then continue to other states where

we are actively writing personal lines products.

7
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 (b)

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Premiums earned $265,838,594 $196,792,696 $185,841,193 $167,769,854 $151,646,199

Investment income, net 15,906,728 13,315,936 14,581,252 15,885,544 16,394,747

Realized investment gains (losses) 1,466,220 1,368,031 144,190 (880,254) 170,852

Total revenues 287,788,638 214,992,328 203,803,561 185,163,623 170,581,587

Income before income taxes

and extraordinary gain 37,054,251 25,436,375 16,494,584 7,091,729 11,743,028

Income taxes 10,885,652 7,142,399 4,491,862 1,273,598 2,906,248

Extraordinary gain 5,445,670 — — — —

Net income 31,614,269 18,293,976 12,002,722 5,818,131 8,836,780

Basic earnings per common share 2.40 1.91 1.32 .65 1.01

Diluted earnings per common share 2.32 1.85 1.31 .64 1.01

Cash dividends per share

of common stock (a) N/A N/A N/A N/A .36

Cash dividends per share

of Class A common stock (a) .48 .43 .40 .40 N/A

Cash dividends per share

of Class B common stock (a) .42 .39 .36 .36 N/A

BALANCE SHEET DATA AT YEAR END

Total investments $499,069,332 $421,276,467 $332,299,094 $300,633,355 $289,344,642

Total assets 735,415,401 602,036,042 501,218,164 456,632,372 426,008,780

Debt obligations 30,929,000 25,774,000 19,800,000 27,600,000 40,000,000

Stockholders’ equity 242,704,314 208,649,232 133,182,850 120,928,349 114,129,591

Stockholders’ equity per share 18.04 16.29 14.52 13.44 12.88

(a) In April 2001, the Company reclassified its common stock as Class B common stock and created a new class of common stock with one-tenth of a vote
per share designated as Class A common stock. Also in April 2001, the Company effected a one-for-three reverse split of the Company’s Class B com-
mon stock and issued a dividend of two shares of Class A common stock for each share of Class B common stock. The effect of the reverse split and
the stock dividend taken together is that the Company had the same total number of shares outstanding after the reverse split and the stock dividend
as it did before the reverse split and the stock dividend. Therefore, there was no change in the historical earnings per share of the Class A common
stock and the Class B common stock.

(b) In January 2001, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Pioneer-New York from the Mutual Company, which previously owned 100% of
Pioneer-New York. The acquisition has been accounted for as a reorganization of entities under common control, similar to a pooling of interests, as
both Pioneer-New York and the Company are under the common management and control of the Mutual Company. As such, the financial data for 2000
has been restated to include Pioneer-New York as a consolidated subsidiary.
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General

We were organized as a regional insurance holding company by
Donegal Mutual Insurance Company (the “Mutual Company”) on August
26, 1986. We operate predominantly as an underwriter of personal and
commercial lines of property and casualty insurance through our
subsidiaries. Our personal lines products consist primarily of
homeowners and private passenger automobile policies. Our
commercial lines products consist primarily of commercial automobile,
commercial multi-peril and workers’ compensation policies. Our
insurance subsidiaries, Atlantic States Insurance Company (“Atlantic
States”), Southern Insurance Company of Virginia (“Southern”), Le
Mars Insurance Company (“Le Mars”) and the Peninsula Insurance
Group (“Peninsula”), which consists of Peninsula Indemnity Company
and The Peninsula Insurance Company, write personal and commercial
lines of property and casualty coverages exclusively through a network
of independent insurance agents in the Mid-Atlantic, Midwest and
Southern states. We acquired Le Mars and Peninsula on January 1,
2004, and their results of operations have been included in our
consolidated results from that date. We also own 48.1% of the
outstanding stock of Donegal Financial Services Corporation (“DFSC”),
a thrift holding company. The Mutual Company owns the remaining
51.9% of the outstanding stock of DFSC.

At December 31, 2004, the Mutual Company held approximately 42% of
our outstanding Class A common stock and approximately 66% of our
outstanding Class B common stock. We refer to the Mutual Company
and our insurance subsidiaries as the Donegal Insurance Group.

Transactions with Affiliates

Atlantic States, our largest subsidiary, and the Mutual Company have a
pooling agreement under which both companies are allocated a given
percentage of their combined underwriting results, excluding certain
reinsurance assumed by the Mutual Company from our insurance
subsidiaries. Atlantic States has a 70% share of the results of the pool,
and the Mutual Company has a 30% share of the results of the pool. The
pooling agreement is intended to produce more uniform and stable
underwriting results from year to year for each pool participant than they
would experience individually and to spread the risk of loss among the
participants based on each participant’s relative amount of surplus and
relative access to capital. Each participant in the pool has at its disposal
the capacity of the entire pool, rather than being limited to policy
exposures of a size commensurate with its own capital and surplus.

In addition to the pooling agreement and third-party reinsurance, our
insurance subsidiaries have various reinsurance arrangements with the
Mutual Company. These agreements include:

• catastrophe reinsurance agreements with Atlantic, Le Mars and
Southern, 

• an excess of loss reinsurance agreement with Southern, 

• a workers’ compensation reallocation agreement with Southern and

• 100% retrocessional agreements with Le Mars and Southern. 

The excess of loss and catastrophe reinsurance agreements are
intended to lessen the effects of a single large loss, or an accumulation
of losses arising from one event, to levels that are appropriate given
each subsidiary’s size, underwriting profile and surplus position. 

The Mutual Company and Southern have an agreement in place to
reallocate the loss results of workers’ compensation business written by
Southern as part of commercial accounts primarily written by the
Mutual Company or Atlantic States. This agreement provides for the
workers’ compensation loss ratio of Southern to be no worse than the
average workers’ compensation loss ratio for Atlantic States, Southern
and the Mutual Company combined.

Le Mars and Southern have 100% retrocessional agreements with the
Mutual Company that are intended to provide Le Mars and Southern
with the same A.M. Best rating, currently A (Excellent), as the Mutual
Company, which Le Mars and Southern might not be able to achieve
without these agreements in place. The retrocessional agreements do
not otherwise provide for pooling or reinsurance with or by the Mutual
Company and do not transfer insurance risk.

The Mutual Company provides facilities, personnel and other services to
us, and the related expenses are allocated between Atlantic States and
the Mutual Company in relation to their relative participation in the
pooling agreement. Le Mars and Southern reimburse the Mutual
Company for their personnel costs, and Southern bears its
proportionate share of information services costs based on its
percentage of total written premiums of the Donegal Insurance Group.

Subsequent to the receipt of applicable board approvals, all agreements
and all changes to existing agreements between our subsidiaries and
the Mutual Company are subject to approval by a coordinating
committee that is comprised of two of our board members who do not
serve on the Mutual Company board and two board members of the
Mutual Company who do not serve on our board. In order to approve
an agreement or a change in an agreement, our members on the
coordinating committee must conclude that the agreement or change is
fair to us and our stockholders, and the Mutual Company’s members on
the coordinating committee must conclude that the agreement or
change is fair to the Mutual Company and its policyholders.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are combined with those of our insurance
subsidiaries and are presented on a consolidated basis in accordance
with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

We make estimates and assumptions that can have a significant effect
on amounts and disclosures we report in our financial statements. The
most significant estimates relate to our reserves for property and
casualty insurance unpaid losses and loss expenses, valuation of
investments, policy acquisition costs and guaranty fund liability accruals.
While we believe our estimates are appropriate, the ultimate amounts
may differ from the estimates provided. The methods for making these
estimates are regularly reviewed, and any adjustment considered
necessary is reflected in our current results of operations. 

Liability for Losses and Loss Expenses

With respect to reserves for property and casualty insurance unpaid
losses and loss expenses, significant components of our estimates
include a variety of factors such as medical inflation trends, regulatory
and judicial rulings, legal settlements, property replacements, repair
cost trends and losses under assumed reinsurance. In recent years,
certain of these component costs, such as medical inflation trends and
legal settlements, have experienced significant volatility and resulted in

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
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incurred amounts higher than our original estimates, and we have
factored these changes in trends into our loss estimates. However, due
to the nature of these liabilities, actual results could ultimately vary
significantly from the amounts recorded.

Loss reserves are set at full-expected cost. Inflation is implicitly
provided for in the reserving function through analysis of costs, trends
and reviews of historical reserving results.

We occasionally receive new information on files that had previously
been closed. For example, one of our policyholders may incur losses
that were not known at the time of the original claim settlement. We are
also exposed to larger than historical settlements due to changes in law,
precedent or underlying inflation on pending and unreported claims.
When we experience adverse development of losses from prior accident
years, our current year underwriting results are negatively impacted. To
the extent our prior year reserve deficiencies are indicative of
deteriorating underlying loss trends and are material, we seek to
increase the pricing of affected lines of business to the extent permitted
by state departments of insurance. We also review trends in loss
development in order to determine if adjustments, such as reserve
strengthening, are appropriate. Because of our participation in the pool,
we are exposed to adverse loss development on the business of the
Mutual Company included in the pool.

Investments
We make estimates concerning the valuation of our investments and the
recognition of other than temporary declines in the value of our
investments. When we consider the decline in value of an individual
investment to be other than temporary, we write down the investment
to its estimated net realizable value, and the amount of the write-down
is reflected as a realized loss in our statement of income. We
individually monitor all investments for other than temporary declines in
value. Generally, if an individual equity security has depreciated in value
by more than 20% of original cost, and has been in an unrealized loss
position for more than six months, we assume there has been an other
than temporary decline in value. With respect to debt securities, we
assume there has been an other than temporary decline in value if it is
probable that contractual payments will not be received. In addition, we
may write down securities in an unrealized loss position based on a
number of other factors, including: the fair value of the investment
being significantly below its cost, the deteriorating financial condition of
the issuer of a security, the occurrence of industry, company and
geographic events that have negatively impacted the value of a security
or rating agency downgrades. 

Our investments in available-for-sale fixed maturity and equity securities
are presented at estimated fair value, which generally represents quoted
market prices. 

During 2003, we sold certain bonds that had been classified as held to
maturity due to a series of rating agency downgrades. These bonds had
an amortized cost of $1.8 million, and the sale resulted in a realized
gain of $165,564. There were no other sales or transfers from the held
to maturity portfolio in 2004 and 2003.

Policy Acquisition Costs
Policy acquisition costs, consisting primarily of commissions, premium
taxes and certain other underwriting costs that vary with and are
directly related to the production of business, are deferred and
amortized over the period in which the premiums are earned. The
method followed in computing deferred policy acquisition costs limits
the amount of such deferred costs to their estimated realizable value,
which gives effect to the premium to be earned, related investment
income, losses and loss expenses and certain other costs expected to
be incurred as the premium is earned.

Guaranty Fund Liability Accruals

We make estimates of our insurance subsidiaries’ liabilities for guaranty
fund and other assessments because of insurance company
insolvencies from states in which the subsidiaries are licensed.
Generally, an insurer is subject to assessment, depending upon its
market share of a given line of business, to assist in the payment of
unpaid claims and related costs of insolvent insurance companies. We
generally record our liability for such assessments as we write
premiums upon which those assessments are based.

Management Evaluation of Operating Results 

We evaluate the performance of our commercial lines and personal lines
segments primarily based upon underwriting results as determined
under statutory accounting practices (SAP), which our management
uses to measure performance for our total business. We use the
following financial data to monitor and evaluate our operating results:

Year Ended December 31,
(amount in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Net Premiums Written:
Personal lines:

Automobile $118,734 $ 86,644 $ 84,643
Homeowners 47,540 36,989 34,637
Other 9,882 6,753 6,497

Total personal lines 176,156 130,386 125,777
Commercial lines:

Automobile 32,679 18,655 17,451
Workers’ compensation 29,228 25,627 23,845
Commercial multi-peril 42,253 30,199 25,536
Other 2,966 2,114 1,895

Total commercial lines 107,126 76,595 68,727
Total net 

premiums written $283,282 $206,981 $194,504

Components of GAAP Combined Ratio:
Loss ratio 61.7% 64.2% 69.6%
Expense ratio 30.9% 30.2% 29.5%
Dividend ratio 0.5% 0.6% 0.5%

GAAP combined ratio 93.1% 95.0% 99.6%

Revenues:
Premiums earned:

Personal lines $169,322 $125,322 $119,838
Commercial lines 99,657 71,471 66,003

Total SAP
premiums earned 268,979 196,793 185,841

GAAP adjustments (3,140) — —
Total GAAP

premiums earned 265,839 196,793 185,841
Net investment income 15,907 13,316 14,581
Realized investment gains 1,466 1,368 144
Other 4,577 3,515 3,238

Total revenues $287,789 $214,992 $203,804
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Year Ended December 31,
(amount in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Components of Net Income:
Underwriting income (loss):

Personal lines $ 10,100 $ 2,004 $ (5,056)
Commercial lines 6,209 7,173 6,326

SAP underwriting income 16,309 9,177 1,270
GAAP adjustments 2,109 692 (558)
GAAP underwriting income 18,418 9,869 712

Net investment income 15,907 13,316 14,581
Realized investment gains 1,466 1,368 144
Other 1,263 883 1,058
Income before income taxes

and extraordinary item 37,054 25,436 16,495
Income taxes (10,886) (7,142) (4,492)
Income before extraordinary item 26,168 18,294 12,003
Extraordinary gain 5,446 — —

Net income $ 31,614 $ 18,294 $ 12,003

Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
Net Premiums Written
Our 2004 net premiums written increased by 36.9% to $283.3 million,
compared to $207.0 million for 2003. Net premiums written by Le Mars
and Peninsula were $58.8 million in 2004, representing 77% of our
written premium growth for the year. Commercial lines net premiums
written increased $30.5 million, or 39.9%, for 2004 compared to 2003.
Personal lines net premiums written increased $45.8 million, or 35.1%,
for 2004 compared to 2003. Excluding net premiums written by Le
Mars and Peninsula, commercial lines net premiums written increased
$11.4 million, or 14.9%, for 2004 compared to 2003, and personal lines
net premiums written increased $6.1 million, or 4.7%, for 2004
compared to 2003. We have benefited during these periods from
premium increases by our insurance subsidiaries that resulted from
pricing actions approved by regulators. These increases, which related
primarily to commercial lines of business in 2004, were realized in most
of the states in which we operate. In addition to acquisition growth and
pricing increases, we have also benefited from organic growth in most
of the states in which we operate.

Net Premiums Earned
Our net premiums earned increased to $265.8 million for 2004, an
increase of $69.0 million, or 35.1%, over 2003. Our net earned
premiums during 2004 have grown due to the increase in written
premiums during the year. Premiums are earned, or recognized as
income, over the terms of our policies, which are generally one year or
less in duration. Therefore, increases or decreases in net premiums
earned will generally reflect increases or decreases in net premiums
written in the preceding twelve-month period compared to the same
period one year earlier.

Investment Income
For 2004, our net investment income increased 19.5% to $15.9 million,
compared to $13.3 million for 2003. An increase in our average
invested assets from $376.8 million in 2003 to $460.2 million in 2004
accounted for the increase in investment income in 2004 compared to
2003. Our annualized average return was 3.5% during both years.

Installment Payment Fees
Our installment payment fees increased in 2004 primarily as a result of
our January 1, 2004 acquisitions and, to a lesser extent, due to
increases in fee rates and policy counts during 2004.

Net Realized Investment Gains/Losses
Our net realized investment gains in 2004 were $1.5 million, compared
to $1.4 million in 2003. Our net realized investment gains in 2004 were
net of impairment charges of $6,650, compared to impairment charges
of $237,724 recognized in 2003. Our impairment charges for both
years were the result of declines in the market value of common stocks
that we determined to be other than temporary. The remaining net
realized investment gains and losses in both periods resulted from
normal turnover within our investment portfolio.

Losses and Loss Expenses
Our loss ratio, which is the ratio of incurred losses and loss expenses
to premiums earned, in 2004 was 61.7%, compared to 64.2% in 2003.
Our commercial lines loss ratio increased to 60.4% in 2004, compared
to 57.7% in 2003. This increase primarily resulted from the commercial
automobile loss ratio increasing to 53.9% in 2004, compared to 51.9%
in 2003, and the workers’ compensation loss ratio increasing to 87.2%
in 2004, compared to 60.5% in 2003. The personal lines loss ratio
improved from 67.8% in 2003 to 62.5% in 2004, primarily as a result
of improvement in the personal automobile loss ratio to 65.5% in
2004, compared to 69.9% in 2003, and improvement in the
homeowners loss ratio to 56.4% in 2004, compared to 65.5% in 2003.
The increase in our 2004 workers’ compensation loss ratio resulted
from reserve strengthening based upon recent development trends in
this line of business. Improvements in our 2004 loss ratios reflect the
benefits of premium pricing increases as well as favorable prior
accident year loss development of $7.2 million in 2004, compared to
favorable development of $450,110 in 2003. Included in the 2004
development are decreases in the liability for losses and loss expenses
of prior years for Le Mars and Peninsula of $3.6 million and $1.4
million, respectively, largely due to favorable settlement of open claims.

Underwriting Expenses
Our expense ratio, which is the ratio of policy acquisition and other
underwriting expenses to premiums earned, in 2004 was 30.9%,
compared to 30.2% in 2003. Improvements from expense control
efforts were offset by higher underwriting-based incentive costs
incurred in 2004 compared to 2003.

Combined Ratio
Our combined ratio was 93.1% and 95.0% in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The combined ratio represents the sum of the loss ratio,
expense ratio and dividend ratio, which is the ratio of workers’
compensation policy dividends incurred to premiums earned. The
improvement in our combined ratio was attributable to the decrease in
the loss ratio between years.

Interest Expense
Our interest expense in 2004 was $1.6 million, compared to $1.3
million in 2003, reflecting an increase in interest expense related to the
issuance of an additional $5.2 million of subordinated debentures in
2004 and increases in the average interest rates on our subordinated
debentures compared to 2003.

Income Taxes
Our income tax expense was $10.9 million in 2004, compared to $7.1
million in 2003, representing effective tax rates of 29.4% and 28.1%,
respectively. The change between effective tax rates is due to tax-
exempt interest representing a smaller proportion of income before
taxes in 2004 compared to 2003.
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Net Income and Earnings Per Share

Our net income in 2004 was $31.6 million, an increase of 72.8% over
the $18.3 million reported in 2003. Our diluted earnings per share were
$2.32 in 2004, compared to $1.85 in 2003. Our net income for 2004
included an extraordinary gain of $5.4 million, or $.40 per share on a
diluted basis, related to an acquisition. Our income before extraordinary
item in 2004 was $26.2 million, an increase of 43.0% over net income
reported in 2003. Our earnings per share were impacted by an increase
in the weighted average number of shares from 9.9 million for 2003 to
13.6 million for 2004. This increase was primarily attributable to our
offering of 3.5 million shares of Class A common stock that was
completed in December 2003.

Book Value Per Share and Return on Equity

Our stockholders’ equity increased by $34.1 million in 2004, primarily
as a result of favorable operating results. Book value per share
increased by 10.7% to $18.04 at December 31, 2004, compared to
$16.29 a year earlier. Our return on average equity was 14.0% in 2004,
compared to 12.2% in 2003.

Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Net Premiums Written

Our 2003 net premiums written increased by 6.4% to $207.0 million,
compared to $194.5 million for 2002. Commercial lines net premiums
written increased $7.9 million, or 11.4%, for 2003 compared to 2002.
Personal lines net premiums written increased $4.6 million, or 3.7%,
for 2003 compared to 2002. We have benefited during these periods,
and expect to continue to benefit, from premium increases by our
insurance subsidiaries that have resulted from pricing actions approved
by regulators. These increases related primarily to private passenger
automobile, commercial multi-peril, workers’ compensation and
homeowners lines of business realized in most of the states in which
we operate. In addition to pricing increases, we have also benefited
from organic growth in most of the states in which we operate.

Net Premiums Earned

Our net premiums earned increased to $196.8 million for 2003, an
increase of $11.0 million, or 5.9%, over 2002. Our net premiums
earned during 2003 have grown due to the increase in written
premiums during the year. Premiums are earned, or recognized as
income, over the terms of our policies, which are generally one-year or
less in duration. Therefore, increases or decreases in net premiums
earned will generally reflect increases or decreases in net premiums
written in the preceding twelve-month period compared to the same
period one year earlier.

Investment Income

For 2003, our net investment income decreased 8.7% to $13.3 million,
compared to $14.6 million for 2002. An increase in our average
invested assets from $316.5 million in 2002 to $376.8 million in 2003
was more than offset by a decrease in our annualized average return on
investments from 4.6% in 2002 to 3.5% in 2003, and accounted for the
decrease in investment income in 2003 compared to 2002. The
decrease in our annualized average return during both years compared
to the prior years reflects a declining interest rate environment.

Net Realized Investment Gains/Losses

Our net realized investment gains in 2003 were $1.4 million, compared
to $144,190 in 2002. Our net realized investment gains in 2003 were
net of impairment charges of $237,724, compared to impairment
charges of $378,672 recognized in 2002. Our impairment charges for
both years were the result of declines in the market value of common
stocks that we determined to be other than temporary. The remaining
net realized investment gains and losses in both periods resulted from
normal turnover within our investment portfolio.

Losses and Loss Expenses

Our loss ratio, which is the ratio of incurred losses and loss expenses
to premiums earned, in 2003 was 64.2%, compared to 69.6% in 2002.
Our commercial lines loss ratio decreased to 57.7% in 2003, compared
to 61.5% in 2002. Our commercial automobile and workers’
compensation loss ratios showed improvement in 2003, with the
commercial automobile loss ratio decreasing to 51.9% in 2003,
compared to 61.6% in 2002, and the workers’ compensation loss ratio
decreasing to 60.5% in 2003, compared to 73.1% in 2002. The
personal lines loss ratio improved from 73.3% in 2002 to 67.8% in
2003, primarily as a result of improvement in the personal automobile
loss ratio in 2003 compared to 2002. Improvements in our 2003 loss
ratios reflect the benefits of premium pricing increases and more
favorable prior accident year loss development compared to the same
period in 2002.

Underwriting Expenses

Our expense ratio, which is the ratio of policy acquisition and other
underwriting expenses to premiums earned, in 2003 was 30.2%,
compared to 29.5% in 2002. Improvements from expense control
efforts were offset by higher underwriting-based incentive costs
incurred in 2003 compared to 2002.

Combined Ratio

Our combined ratio was 95.0% and 99.6% in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The combined ratio represents the sum of the loss ratio,
expense ratio and dividend ratio, which is the ratio of workers’
compensation policy dividends incurred to premiums earned. The
improvement in our combined ratio was attributable to the decrease in
the loss ratio between years.

Interest Expense

Our interest expense in 2003 was $1.3 million, compared to $1.1
million in 2002, reflecting an increase in interest expense related to the
issuance of $25.8 million of subordinated debentures in 2003, offset by
decreases in the average interest rates and average borrowings under
our line of credit in 2003 compared to 2002.

Income Taxes

Our income tax expense was $7.1 million in 2003, compared to $4.5
million in 2002, representing effective tax rates of 28.1% and 27.2%,
respectively. The change between effective tax rates is due to tax-
exempt interest representing a slightly smaller proportion of income
before taxes in 2003 compared to 2002.

Net Income and Earnings Per Share

Our net income in 2003 was $18.3 million, an increase of 52.4% over
the $12.0 million reported in 2002. Our diluted earnings per share were
$1.85 in 2003 compared to $1.31 in 2002.
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Book Value Per Share and Return on Equity

Our stockholders’ equity increased by $75.5 million in 2003, primarily
as a result of the issuance of 3.5 million shares of Class A common
stock in December 2003, which resulted in $59.0 million in net
proceeds to us. Book value per share increased by 12.2% to $16.29 at
December 31, 2003, compared to $14.52 a year earlier. Our return on
average equity was 12.2% in 2003, compared to 9.4% in 2002.

Financial Condition

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measure of an entity’s ability to secure enough cash to
meet its contractual obligations and operating needs as they arise. Our
major sources of funds from operations are the net cash flow generated
from our insurance subsidiaries’ underwriting results, investment
income and maturing investments.

We generate sufficient net positive cash flow from our operations to
fund our commitments and build our investment portfolio, thereby
increasing future investment returns. We maintain a high degree of
liquidity in our investment portfolio in the form of readily marketable
fixed maturities, equity securities and short-term investments. Net cash
flows provided by operating activities in 2004, 2003 and 2002, were
$34.0 million, $31.0 million and $34.1 million, respectively.

On May 24, 2004, we received $5.0 million in net proceeds from the
issuance of subordinated debentures. The debentures mature on May
24, 2034 and are callable at our option, at par, after five years. The
debentures carry an interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate
plus 3.85%, which is adjustable quarterly. At December 31, 2004, the
interest rate on the debentures was 6.21%.

On December 1, 2003, we completed an underwritten public offering of
3.5 million shares of our Class A common stock, resulting in net
proceeds of $59.0 million to us.

On November 25, 2003, we entered into a credit agreement with
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company (“M&T”) relating to a four-
year $35.0 million unsecured, revolving line of credit. As of December
31, 2004, we may borrow up to $35.0 million at interest rates equal to
M&T’s current prime rate or the then current LIBOR rate plus between
1.50% and 1.75%, depending on our leverage ratio. In addition, we pay
a fee of 0.15% per annum on the loan commitment amount, regardless
of usage. The agreement requires our compliance with certain
covenants, which include minimum levels of our net worth, leverage
ratio and statutory surplus and A.M. Best ratings of our subsidiaries. As
of December 31, 2004, there were no borrowings outstanding, and we
complied with all requirements of the agreement.

On October 29, 2003, we received $10.0 million in net proceeds from
the issuance of subordinated debentures. The debentures mature on
October 29, 2033 and are callable at our option, at par, after five years.
The debentures carry an interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR
rate plus 3.85%, which is adjustable quarterly. At December 31, 2004,
the interest rate on the debentures was 5.98%.

On May 15, 2003, we received $15.0 million in net proceeds from the
issuance of subordinated debentures. The debentures mature on May
15, 2033 and are callable at our option, at par, after five years. The
debentures carry an interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate
plus 4.10%, which is adjustable quarterly. At December 31, 2004, the
interest rate on the debentures was 6.38%.

At December 31, 2002, pursuant to a credit agreement dated December
29, 1995, and amended as of July 27, 1998, with Fleet National Bank,

we had unsecured borrowings of $19.8 million. Such borrowings were
made in connection with the various acquisitions and capital
contributions to our subsidiaries. The borrowings under this line of
credit were repaid during 2003, and this credit agreement was
terminated on December 2, 2003.

Dividends declared to stockholders totaled $6.2 million, $4.4 million
and $3.5 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. There are no
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends to our stockholders,
although there are state law restrictions on the payment of dividends
from our insurance subsidiaries to us. Our insurance subsidiaries are
required by law to maintain certain minimum surplus on a statutory
basis, and are subject to regulations under which payment of dividends
from statutory surplus is restricted and may require prior approval of
their domiciliary insurance regulatory authorities. Our insurance
subsidiaries are subject to risk-based capital (RBC) requirements. At
December 31, 2004, our insurance subsidiaries’ capital were each
substantially above the RBC requirements. In 2005, amounts available
for distribution as dividends to us without prior approval of their
domiciliary insurance regulatory authorities are $16.3 million from
Atlantic States, $1.7 million from Le Mars, $2.3 million from Peninsula
and $2.9 million from Southern.

As of January 1, 2004, we acquired all of the outstanding capital stock
of Le Mars, the successor to Le Mars Mutual Insurance Company of
Iowa following its conversion to a stock insurance company pursuant to
a plan of conversion. We acquired the capital stock of Le Mars for
approximately $12.9 million in cash, including payment of $4.4 million
to the Mutual Company for a surplus note that the Mutual Company had
infused into Le Mars and accrued interest.

Le Mars operates as a multiple line carrier in Iowa, Nebraska, Oklahoma
and South Dakota. Personal lines coverages represent a majority of
premiums written, with the balance coming from farmowners and
mercantile and service businesses. Le Mars’ largest lines of business
are private passenger automobile liability and physical damage; other
principal lines include homeowners and commercial multi-peril.

As of January 1, 2004, we acquired all of the outstanding common
stock of Peninsula from Folksamerica Holding Company, Inc. pursuant
to a stock purchase agreement. The cash purchase price of
approximately $23.5 million was equal to 107.5% of the consolidated
GAAP stockholders’ equity of Peninsula as of the date of closing of the
acquisition.

The Peninsula companies are each Maryland-domiciled insurance
companies headquartered in Salisbury, Maryland, which write primarily
private passenger automobile coverages, and also write homeowners,
commercial multi-peril, workers’ compensation and commercial
automobile coverages. Peninsula’s principal operating area includes
Maryland, Delaware and Virginia.

On February 17, 2005, our Board of Directors approved a four-for-three
split of our Class A common stock and our Class B common stock to
be effected in the form of a 331⁄3% stock dividend to stockholders of
record at the close of business March 1, 2005 and payable on March
28, 2005.
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Investments
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, our investment portfolio of investment-
grade bonds, common stock, preferred stock, short-term investments
and cash totaled $506.4 million and $427.2 million, respectively,
representing 68.9% and 71.0%, respectively, of our total assets.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the carrying value of our fixed
maturity investments represented 82.0% and 73.9% of our total
invested assets, respectively.

Our fixed maturity investments consisted of high-quality marketable
bonds, all of which were rated at investment-grade levels, at December
31, 2004 and 2003. 

At December 31, 2004, the net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
fixed maturities, net of deferred taxes, amounted to $3.0 million,
compared to $4.1 million at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2004, the net unrealized gain on our equity securities,
net of deferred taxes, amounted to $1.7 million, compared to $1.2
million at December 31, 2003.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes, changes in
market values of investments and to credit risk.

In the normal course of business, we employ established policies and
procedures to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates,
fluctuations in the value of the fair market value of our debt and equity
securities and credit risk. We seek to mitigate these risks by various
actions described below.

Interest Rate Risk
Our exposure to market risk for a change in interest rates is
concentrated in our investment portfolio. We monitor this exposure
through periodic reviews of asset and liability positions. Estimates of
cash flows and the impact of interest rate fluctuations relating to the
investment portfolio are monitored regularly. Generally, we do not
hedge our exposure to interest rate risk because we have the capacity
to, and do, hold fixed maturity investments to maturity.

Principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by
expected maturity dates for financial instruments sensitive to interest
rates at December 31, 2004 are as follows:

Principal Weighted-Average
(amounts in thousands) Cash Flows Interest Rate
Fixed maturities and short-term bonds:

2005 $ 61,654 2.70%
2006 32,476 5.13%
2007 35,057 4.57%
2008 41,632 3.99%
2009 54,740 4.45%
Thereafter 217,330 4.84%
Total $442,889
Market value $458,814

Debt:
Thereafter $  30,929 6.22%
Total $  30,929
Fair value $  30,929

Actual cash flows from investments may differ from those stated as a
result of calls and prepayments.

Equity Price Risk

Our portfolio of marketable equity securities, which is carried on our
consolidated balance sheets at estimated fair value, has exposure to
price risk, the risk of potential loss in estimated fair value resulting from
an adverse change in prices. Our objective is to earn competitive
relative returns by investing in a diverse portfolio of high-quality, liquid
securities.

Credit Risk

Our objective is to earn competitive returns by investing in a diversified
portfolio of securities. Our portfolios of fixed maturity securities and, to
a lesser extent, short-term investments are subject to credit risk. This
risk is defined as the potential loss in market value resulting from
adverse changes in the borrower’s ability to repay the debt. We manage
this risk by performing up front underwriting analysis and through
regular reviews by our investment staff. Our fixed maturity investments
are also maintained between minimum and maximum percentages of
invested assets.

We provide property and liability insurance coverages through
independent insurance agencies located throughout our operating area.
The majority of this business is billed directly to the insured, although a
portion of our commercial business is billed through our agents who
are extended credit in the normal course of business.

Our insurance subsidiaries maintain reinsurance agreements in place
with the Mutual Company and with a number of other major unaffiliated
authorized reinsurers.

Impact of Inflation

Property and casualty insurance premium rates are established before
the amount of losses and loss settlement expenses, or the extent to
which inflation may impact such expenses, are known. Consequently,
we attempt, in establishing rates, to anticipate the potential impact of
inflation.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” a revision of SFAS
No. 123 and superseding APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123(R)
requires the measurement of all employee share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, using a fair-
value-based method and the recording of such expense in our
consolidated statements of income. The provisions of SFAS No. 123(R)
are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We
are required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) in the third quarter of 2005.
Upon adoption, the pro forma disclosures previously permitted under
SFAS No. 123 will no longer be an alternative to financial statement
recognition. We are evaluating the alternatives allowed under the
standard, and we expect the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) to result in
amounts that are similar to the current pro forma disclosures under
SFAS No. 123 for all share-based payment transactions through
December 31, 2004. SFAS No. 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax
deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported
as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as
required under current rules. This requirement will reduce net operating
cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after
adoption. The amount of operating cash flows recognized for such
excess tax deductions were $2.2 million, $179,097 and $6,323 in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Donegal Group Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2004 2003

Assets
Investments

Fixed maturities
Held to maturity, at amortized cost (fair value $184,688,482 and $116,133,002) $182,573,784 $113,050,784
Available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost $222,071,804 and $192,097,372) 226,757,322 198,433,337

Equity securities, available for sale, at fair value (cost $30,770,759 and $22,890,367) 33,504,976 24,710,405
Investments in affiliates 8,864,741 6,737,816
Short-term investments, at cost, which approximates fair value 47,368,509 78,344,125

Total investments 499,069,332 421,276,467
Cash 7,350,330 5,908,521
Accrued investment income 4,961,173 3,752,075
Premiums receivable 44,266,681 29,016,940
Reinsurance receivable 98,478,657 81,009,106
Deferred policy acquisition costs 22,257,760 16,223,765
Deferred tax asset, net 10,922,440 7,032,409
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 35,907,376 30,691,654
Property and equipment, net 5,508,840 4,151,671
Accounts receivable — securities 1,383,587 1,524,384
Federal income taxes recoverable 3,468,506 —
Other 1,840,719 1,449,050

Total assets $735,415,401 $602,036,042

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Losses and loss expenses $267,190,060 $217,914,057
Unearned premiums 174,458,423 134,028,035
Accrued expenses 13,413,518 7,769,879
Reinsurance balances payable 1,716,372 1,355,796
Federal income taxes payable — 315,808
Cash dividends declared to stockholders 1,566,995 1,378,993
Subordinated debentures 30,929,000 25,774,000
Accounts payable — securities — 2,438,784
Due to affiliate 240,680 904,452
Drafts payable 1,278,433 —
Other 1,917,606 1,507,006

Total liabilities 492,711,087 393,386,810

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 2,000,000 shares; none issued — —
Class A common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000,000 shares,

issued 10,395,227 and 9,880,506 shares and outstanding 10,313,703 and 9,798,982 shares 103,952 98,805
Class B common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 10,000,000 shares,

issued 3,177,440 and 3,051,811 shares and outstanding 3,136,678 and 3,011,049 shares 31,775 30,518
Additional paid-in capital 131,980,264 122,744,905
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,749,965 5,290,923
Retained earnings 106,730,106 81,375,829
Treasury stock, at cost (891,748) (891,748)

Total stockholders’ equity 242,704,314 208,649,232
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $735,415,401 $602,036,042

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Donegal Group Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

Statements of Income
Revenues

Net premiums earned (includes affiliated reinsurance of
$100,773,324, $94,173,934 and $86,195,962) $265,838,594 $196,792,696 $185,841,193

Investment income, net of investment expenses 15,906,728 13,315,936 14,581,252
Installment payment fees 3,686,790 2,464,604 2,447,229
Lease income 890,306 845,211 789,697
Net realized investment gains 1,466,220 1,368,031 144,190
Other income — 205,850 —

Total revenues 287,788,638 214,992,328 203,803,561

Expenses
Net losses and loss expenses (includes affiliated reinsurance of

$55,109,122, $53,659,974 and $54,684,955) 164,141,368 126,243,311 129,267,686
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 39,434,000 30,839,000 29,473,000
Other underwriting expenses 42,544,166 28,686,365 25,331,777
Policy dividends 1,300,893 1,154,773 1,056,790
Interest 1,613,511 1,287,197 1,119,204
Other 1,700,449 1,345,307 1,060,520

Total expenses 250,734,387 189,555,953 187,308,977

Income before income tax expense and extraordinary item 37,054,251 25,436,375 16,494,584
Income tax expense 10,885,652 7,142,399 4,491,862
Income before extraordinary item 26,168,599 18,293,976 12,002,722
Extraordinary gain — unallocated negative goodwill 5,445,670 — —
Net income $ 31,614,269 $ 18,293,976 $ 12,002,722

Basic earnings per common share
Income before extraordinary item $ 1.99 $ 1.91 $ 1.32
Extraordinary item .41 — —
Net income $ 2.40 $ 1.91 $ 1.32

Diluted earnings per common share
Income before extraordinary item $ 1.92 $ 1.85 $ 1.31
Extraordinary item .40 — —
Net income $ 2.32 $ 1.85 $ 1.31

Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Net income $ 31,614,269 $ 18,293,976 $ 12,002,722
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized holding gain arising during the period, net of income

tax of $221,920, $754,840, and $1,148,224 412,085 1,268,190 2,144,813
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income,

net of income tax of $513,177, $478,811 and $49,565 (953,043) (889,220) (94,625)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (540,958) 378,970 2,050,188

Comprehensive income $ 31,073,311 $ 18,672,946 $ 14,052,910

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Donegal Group Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Total
Class A Class B Class A Class B Paid-In Comprehensive Retained Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Shares Amount Amount Capital Income Earnings Stock Equity

Balance, January 1, 2002 6,097,214 3,021,965 $ 60,972 $30,220 $ 58,887,715 $2,861,765 $59,979,425 $(891,748) $120,928,349

Issuance of common stock 166,972 1,670 1,641,547 1,643,217

Net income 12,002,722 12,002,722

Cash dividends (3,526,157) (3,526,157)

Exercise of stock options 4,907 2,777 49 27 78,132 78,208

Grant of stock options 38,034 (38,034) —

Tax benefit on exercise of stock options 6,323 6,323

Other comprehensive income 2,050,188 2,050,188

Balance, December 31, 2002 6,269,093 3,024,742 $ 62,691 $30,247 $ 60,651,751 $4,911,953 $68,417,956 $(891,748) $133,182,850

Issuance of common stock 3,547,000 35,470 60,193,670 60,229,140

Net income 18,293,976 18,293,976

Cash dividends (4,360,026) (4,360,026)

Exercise of stock options 64,413 27,069 644 271 744,310 745,225

Grant of stock options 976,077 (976,077) —

Tax benefit on exercise of stock options 179,097 179,097

Other comprehensive income 378,970 378,970

Balance, December 31, 2003 9,880,506 3,051,811 $ 98,805 $30,518 $122,744,905 $ 5,290,923 $81,375,829 $(891,748) $208,649,232

Issuance of common stock 48,736 282 487 3 859,945 860,435

Net income 31,614,269 31,614,269

Cash dividends (6,172,733) (6,172,733)

Exercise of stock options 465,985 125,347 4,660 1,254 6,081,938 6,087,852

Grant of stock options 87,259 (87,259) —

Tax benefit on exercise of stock options 2,206,217 2,206,217

Other comprehensive loss (540,958) (540,958)

Balance, December 31, 2004 10,395,227 3,177,440 $103,952 $31,775 $131,980,264 $ 4,749,965 $106,730,106 $(891,748) $242,704,314

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Donegal Group Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $31,614,269 $18,293,976 $12,002,722
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Extraordinary gain — unallocated negative goodwill (5,445,670) — —
Depreciation and amortization 2,472,813 1,532,664 1,236,592
Net realized investment gains (1,466,220) (1,368,031) (144,190)

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Losses and loss expenses 13,353,426 7,222,305 30,851,847
Unearned premiums 20,002,138 13,025,588 6,923,183
Accrued expenses 2,406,540 1,186,054 (602,282)
Premiums receivable (6,638,081) (2,730,458) (2,142,951)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (6,033,995) (1,656,695) (962,855)
Deferred income taxes (405,256) (352,731) (579,654)
Reinsurance receivable (9,402,114) 2,198,166 (15,354,098)
Accrued investment income (503,171) 63,374 (50,373)
Amounts due to/from affiliate (663,772) (3,175,963) 65,341
Reinsurance balances payable (576,711) 255,353 261,287
Prepaid reinsurance premiums (2,558,204) (2,837,658) 1,739,471
Current income taxes (1,852,097) 137,358 656,488
Other, net (306,822) (820,406) 181,965

Net adjustments 2,382,804 12,678,920 22,079,771
Net cash provided by operating activities 33,997,073 30,972,896 34,082,493

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed maturities

Held to maturity (64,920,048) (51,747,067) (35,867,577)
Available for sale (75,037,253) (104,935,346) (75,783,783)

Purchase of equity securities (20,631,815) (16,505,807) (18,325,041)
Sale of fixed maturities

Held to maturity — 1,971,000 415,000
Available for sale 27,813,196 16,575,179 461,965

Maturity of fixed maturities
Held to maturity 21,446,791 22,256,933 34,967,828
Available for sale 53,944,121 84,393,268 58,798,825

Sale of equity securities 14,924,971 12,457,028 13,371,510
Purchase of Le Mars Insurance Company (net of cash acquired) (11,816,523) — —
Purchase of Peninsula Insurance Group (net of cash acquired) (21,912,629) — —
Net decrease (increase) in investment in affiliates (2,222,872) (4,048,000) 22,613
Net purchase of property and equipment (521,095) (371,477) (552,005)
Net sales (purchases) of short-term investments 40,259,336 (49,314,707) (4,955,218)

Net cash used in investing activities (38,673,820) (89,268,996) (27,445,883)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Issuance of common stock 6,948,287 60,974,365 1,721,425
Issuance of subordinated debentures 5,155,000 25,774,000 —
Payments on line of credit — (19,800,000) (7,800,000)
Cash dividends paid (5,984,731) (3,868,348) (3,508,719)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 6,118,556 63,080,017 (9,587,294)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,441,809 4,783,917 (2,950,684)
Cash at beginning of year 5,908,521 1,124,604 4,075,288
Cash at end of year $ 7,350,330 $ 5,908,521 $ 1,124,604

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization and Business

We were organized in 1986 as a regional insurance holding company by
Donegal Mutual Insurance Company (the “Mutual Company”) and
operate predominantly as an underwriter of property and casualty
insurance through our subsidiaries. Our property and casualty insurance
subsidiaries, Atlantic States Insurance Company (“Atlantic States”),
Southern Insurance Company of Virginia (“Southern”), Le Mars
Insurance Company (“Le Mars”), and the Peninsula Insurance Group
(“Peninsula”), which consists of Peninsula Indemnity Company and The
Peninsula Insurance Company, write personal and commercial lines of
property and casualty coverages exclusively through a network of
independent insurance agents in the Mid-Atlantic, Midwest and Southern
states. We have three operating segments: the investment function, the
personal lines function and the commercial lines function. Our personal
lines products consist primarily of homeowners and private passenger
automobile policies. Our commercial lines products consist primarily of
commercial automobile, commercial multi-peril and workers'
compensation policies. At December 31, 2004, the Mutual Company held
approximately 42% of our outstanding Class A common stock and
approximately 66% of our outstanding Class B common stock.

Atlantic States participates in a pooling agreement with the Mutual
Company. Under the pooling agreement, the insurance business of the
two companies is pooled, and Atlantic States assumes 70% of the
pooled business. 

We also own 48.1% of the outstanding stock of Donegal Financial
Services Corporation ("DFSC"), a thrift holding company that owns
Province Bank FSB. The remaining 51.9% of the outstanding stock of
DFSC is owned by the Mutual Company.

Pioneer Insurance Company of Ohio (“Pioneer-Ohio”), previously a
wholly owned subsidiary, was merged into Atlantic States on May 1,
2002. Southern Heritage Insurance Company, previously a wholly
owned subsidiary, was merged into Southern on May 1, 2002. The
mergers were accounted for as statutory mergers and had no financial
impact on the consolidated entity.

On December 1, 2003, we completed an underwritten public offering of
3.5 million shares of our Class A common stock, resulting in net
proceeds of $59.0 million to us.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, include our accounts and those of our wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. The terms “we,” “us,” “our,” or
the “Company” as used herein refer to the consolidated entity.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and
revenues and expenses for the period. Actual results could differ
significantly from those estimates.

We make estimates and assumptions that can have a significant effect
on amounts and disclosures we report in our financial statements. The

most significant estimates relate to our reserves for property and
casualty insurance unpaid losses and loss expenses, valuation of
investments, policy acquisition costs and guaranty fund liability
accruals. While we believe our estimates are appropriate, the ultimate
amounts may differ from the estimates provided. The methods for
making these estimates are regularly reviewed, and any adjustment
considered necessary is reflected in our current results of operations. 

Reclassification

Certain amounts in 2003 and 2002 as reported in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified to conform to
the current year presentation.

Investments

We classify our debt and equity securities into the following categories:

Held to Maturity — Debt securities that we have the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity; reported at amortized cost.

Available for Sale — Debt and equity securities not classified as held
to maturity; reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and
losses excluded from income and reported as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity (net of tax effects).

Short-term investments are carried at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.

We regularly perform various analytical procedures to determine
possible impairment with respect to our investments, including
identifying any security whose fair value is below its amortized cost.
Upon identification of such securities, a detailed review is performed to
determine whether such decline is other than temporary. If there is a
decline in fair value below amortized cost that is other than temporary,
the cost basis for such investments in the held to maturity and available
for sale categories is reduced to fair value. Such decline in cost basis is
recognized as a realized loss and charged to income.

Premiums and discounts on debt securities are amortized over the life
of the security as an adjustment to yield using the effective interest
method. Realized investment gains and losses are computed using the
specific identification method.

Premiums and discounts for mortgage-backed debt securities are
amortized using anticipated prepayments.

Investments in affiliates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB)
Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in
Common Stock.” Under the equity method, we record our investment at
cost, with adjustments for our share of affiliate earnings and losses as
well as changes in affiliate equity due to unrealized gains and losses.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

We have used the following methods and assumptions in estimating
our fair value disclosures:

Investments — Fair values for fixed maturity securities are based on
quoted market prices, when available. If quoted market prices are
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Income Taxes 

We currently file a consolidated federal income tax return.

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. The
objective of the asset and liability method is to establish deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the temporary differences between the
financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities
at enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled.

Credit Risk

We provide property and liability coverages through independent agency
systems located throughout our insurance subsidiaries’ operating areas.
The majority of this business is billed directly to the insured, although a
portion of our commercial business is billed through our agents, who
are extended credit in the normal course of business.

Our insurance subsidiaries have reinsurance agreements in place with the
Mutual Company and with a number of other authorized reinsurers with
at least an A.M. Best rating of A- or an equivalent financial condition.

Reinsurance Accounting and Reporting 

We rely upon reinsurance agreements to limit our maximum net loss
from large single risks or risks in concentrated areas, and to increase
our capacity to write insurance. Reinsurance does not relieve the
primary insurer from liability to its policyholders. To the extent that a
reinsurer may be unable to pay losses for which it is liable under the
terms of a reinsurance agreement, we are exposed to the risk of
continued liability for such losses. However, in an effort to reduce the
risk of non-payment, we require all of our reinsurers to have an A.M.
Best rating of A- or better or, with respect to foreign reinsurers, to have
a financial condition that, in the opinion of management, is equivalent to
a company with at least an A- rating.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective July 1, 2000, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Interpretation No. 44 (FIN No. 44), “Accounting for Certain
Transactions involving Stock Compensation,” and Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue No. 00-23 (EITF 00-23), “Issues Related to the Accounting
for Stock Compensation under APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and FIN No. 44, Accounting for Certain
Transactions involving Stock Compensation.” Pursuant to FIN No. 44,
APB Opinion No. 25 does not apply in the separate financial statements
of a subsidiary to the accounting for stock compensation granted by the
subsidiary to employees of the parent or another subsidiary. EITF 00-23
states that when employees of a controlling entity are granted stock
compensation, the entity granting the stock compensation should
measure the fair value of the award at the grant date and recognize the
fair value as a dividend to the controlling entity. These provisions apply
to us, because the Mutual Company is the employer of record for
substantially all employees that provide services to us. 

We account for stock-based director compensation plans under the
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations. During
2001, we adopted an Equity Incentive Plan for Directors that made
200,000 shares of Class A common stock available for issuance. Awards
may be made in the form of stock options, and the plan additionally
provides for the issuance of 175 shares of restricted stock to each
director on the first business day of January in each year. No stock-based
director compensation is reflected in income, as all options granted under
those plans had an exercise price equal to, or greater than, the market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of the grant.

not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of
comparable instruments or values obtained from independent
pricing services through a bank trustee. The fair values for equity
securities are based on quoted market prices.

Cash and Short-Term Investments — The carrying amounts
reported in the balance sheet for these instruments approximate
their fair values.

Premium and Reinsurance Receivables and Payables — The
carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for these
instruments approximate their fair values.

Subordinated Debentures — The carrying amounts reported in the
balance sheet for these instruments approximate fair value due to
their variable rate nature.

Revenue Recognition 

Insurance premiums are recognized as income over the terms of the
policies. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro-rata basis.

Policy Acquisition Costs 

Policy acquisition costs, consisting primarily of commissions, premium
taxes and certain other variable underwriting costs, are deferred and
amortized over the period in which the premiums are earned.
Anticipated losses and loss expenses, expenses for maintenance of
policies in force and anticipated investment income are considered in
the determination of the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs.

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are reported at depreciated cost that is
computed using the straight-line method based upon estimated useful
lives of the assets.

Losses and Loss Expenses 

The liability for losses and loss expenses includes amounts determined
on the basis of estimates for losses reported prior to the close of the
accounting period and other estimates, including those for incurred but
not reported losses and salvage and subrogation recoveries.

These liabilities are continuously reviewed and updated by management,
and management believes that such liabilities are adequate to cover the
ultimate net cost of claims and expenses. When management
determines that changes in estimates are required, such changes are
included in current earnings.

We have no material exposures to asbestos and environmental
liabilities.

Guaranty Fund Liability Accruals

We make estimates of our insurance subsidiaries’ liabilities for guaranty
fund and other assessments because of insurance company
insolvencies from states in which our insurance subsidiaries are
licensed. Generally, an insurer is subject to assessment, depending
upon its market share of a given line of business, to assist in the
payment of unpaid claims and related costs of insolvent insurance
companies. We generally record our liability for such assessments as
we write premiums upon which those assessments are based.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per
share as if we had applied the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (as amended by SFAS No. 148),
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

2004 2003 2002
Net income, as reported $31,614,269 $18,293,976 $12,002,722
Less:

Total stock-based 
employee compensation
expense determined 
under fair-value- 
based method for 
all awards, net of 
related tax effects (18,657) (12,092) (203,463)

Pro forma net income $31,595,612 $18,281,884 $11,799,259

Basic earnings per share:
As reported $ 2.40 $ 1.91 $ 1.32
Pro forma 2.40 1.91 1.30

Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $ 2.32 $ 1.85 $ 1.31
Pro forma 2.32 1.85 1.28

No options were granted to directors in 2004 or 2002. The weighted-
average grant date fair value of options granted during 2003 was $2.18.
This fair value was calculated based upon a risk-free interest rate of
1.8%, expected life of 3 years, expected volatility of 34% and expected
dividend yield of 4%.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the
period, while diluted earnings per share reflects the dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were
exercised or converted into common stock.

2 — Impact of New Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment,” a revision of SFAS No. 123 and superseding APB Opinion
No. 25. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the measurement of all employee
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, using a fair-value-based method and the recording of
such expense in our consolidated statements of income. The provisions
of SFAS No. 123(R) are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. We are required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) in the third
quarter of 2005. Upon adoption, the pro forma disclosures previously
permitted under SFAS No. 123 will no longer be an alternative to
financial statement recognition. We are evaluating the alternatives
allowed under the standard, and we expect the adoption of SFAS No.
123(R) to result in amounts that are similar to the current pro forma
disclosures under SFAS No. 123 for all share-based payment
transactions through December 31, 2004. The impact of any future
share-based payment transactions on our financial position or results of
operations cannot be determined. SFAS No. 123(R) also requires the
benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to
be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash
flow as required under current rules. This requirement will reduce net
operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods

after adoption. The amount of operating cash flows recognized for such
excess tax deductions were $2.2 million, $179,097 and $6,323 in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

3 — Transactions with Affiliates

We conduct business and have various agreements with the Mutual
Company that are described below:

a. Reinsurance Pooling and Other Reinsurance Arrangements 

Atlantic States cedes to the Mutual Company all of its insurance
business and assumes from the Mutual Company 70% of the Mutual
Company’s total pooled insurance business, including that assumed
from Atlantic States and substantially all of the business assumed by
the Mutual Company from Southern (prior to January 1, 2002). The
Mutual Company and Atlantic States write business with different risk
profiles. Through the pooling arrangement, each is able to share
proportionately in the results of all policies written by the other. Atlantic
States ceded premiums earned of $62,831,701, $55,846,128 and
$45,229,457 and ceded losses and loss expenses incurred of
$42,487,082, $35,840,578 and $34,471,381 under this arrangement
during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. It also assumed premiums
earned of $167,949,892, $153,068,026 and $134,236,778 and assumed
losses and loss expenses incurred of $101,567,995, $99,677,221 and
$96,517,930 under this arrangement during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Atlantic States had prepaid reinsurance premiums of
$34,227,955, $29,981,597 and $26,517,322 and a ceded liability for
losses and loss expenses of $57,989,162, $52,263,271 and
$47,862,627 under this arrangement as of December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. It also had assumed unearned premiums of
$84,350,320, $77,782,685 and $69,208,310 and an assumed liability
for losses and loss expenses of $127,127,611, $121,297,553 and
$113,850,952 under this arrangement at December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Prior to January 1, 2002, the Mutual Company and Southern had a
quota share agreement whereby Southern ceded 50% of its direct
business, less reinsurance, to the Mutual Company. The business
assumed by the Mutual Company from Southern became part of the
pooling arrangement between the Mutual Company and Atlantic States.
Southern ceded losses and loss expenses incurred of $(611,479),
$(73,077) and $488,055 under this agreement during 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Southern had a ceded liability for losses and loss
expenses of $2,333,521, $4,175,127 and $6,399,727 under this
agreement at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. This
agreement was terminated as of January 1, 2002.

Atlantic States, Southern and Le Mars (effective June 1, 2004) each
have a catastrophe reinsurance agreement with the Mutual Company
that limits the maximum liability under any one catastrophic occurrence
to $800,000, $600,000 and $500,000, respectively, with a combined
limit of $1,500,000 for a catastrophe involving both Atlantic States and
Southern. Prior to merging into Atlantic States, Pioneer-Ohio had a
catastrophe reinsurance agreement with the Mutual Company that
limited the maximum liability under any one catastrophic occurrence to
$200,000. Prior to merging into Southern, Southern Heritage had a
catastrophe reinsurance agreement with the Mutual Company that
limited the maximum liability under any one catastrophic occurrence to
$400,000. Prior to merging into Atlantic States, Pioneer-Ohio and the
Mutual Company had an excess of loss reinsurance agreement in which
the Mutual Company assumed up to $250,000 of losses in excess of
$50,000. The Mutual Company and Southern have an excess of loss



reinsurance agreement in which the Mutual Company assumes up to
$170,000 ($150,000 in 2003 and $175,000 in 2002) of losses in excess
of $200,000 ($150,000 in 2003 and $125,000 in 2002). Effective
October 1, 2000 and prior to merging into Southern, Southern Heritage
and the Mutual Company had an excess of loss reinsurance agreement
in which the Mutual Company assumed up to $175,000 of losses in
excess of $125,000. The Mutual Company has agreements in place with
Southern to reallocate the loss results of workers’ compensation
business written by those companies as part of commercial accounts
primarily written by the Mutual Company or Atlantic States. These
agreements provide for the workers’ compensation loss ratios of
Southern to be no worse than the average workers’ compensation loss
ratio for Atlantic States, Southern and the Mutual Company combined.
Our subsidiaries ceded premiums earned of $4,344,867, $3,047,964 and
$2,811,359 and ceded losses and loss expenses incurred of $4,583,270,
$10,249,746 and $6,873,539 under these various agreements during
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Our subsidiaries had a ceded liability
for losses and loss expenses of $7,532,812, $7,218,397 and $6,397,326
under these various agreements at December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively.

Southern and Le Mars (effective April 1, 2004) have agreements with
the Mutual Company under which they cede, and then reassume back,
100% of their business net of reinsurance. The primary purpose of the
agreement is to provide Southern and Le Mars with the same A.M. Best
rating (currently “A”) as the Mutual Company, which these subsidiaries
might not achieve without these contracts in place. These agreements
do not transfer insurance risk. While these subsidiaries ceded and
reassumed amounts received from policyholders of $64,696,278,
$46,885,317 and $48,921,377 and claims of $36,269,291, $26,497,971
and $28,859,644 under these agreements in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, the amounts are not reflected in our consolidated financial
statements. The aggregate liabilities ceded and reassumed under these
agreements were $71,377,640 and $47,217,323 at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

b. Expense Sharing
The Mutual Company provides facilities, management and other
services to us, and we reimburse the Mutual Company for such services
on a periodic basis under usage agreements and pooling arrangements.
The charges are based upon the relative participation of us and the
Mutual Company in the pooling arrangement, and our management and
the management of the Mutual Company consider this allocation to be
reasonable. Charges for these services totalled $40,165,744,
$33,047,769 and $28,586,888 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

c. Lease Agreement
We lease office equipment and automobiles with terms ranging from 3
to 10 years to the Mutual Company under a 10-year lease agreement
dated January 1, 2000.

d. Legal Services
Donald H. Nikolaus, President and one of our directors, is also a partner
in the law firm of Nikolaus & Hohenadel. Such firm has served as our
general counsel since 1986, principally in connection with the defense
of claims litigation arising in Lancaster, Dauphin and York counties.
Such firm is paid its customary fees for such services.

e. Province Bank
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, we had $3,762,153 and $5,661,089,
respectively, in checking accounts with Province Bank, a wholly owned
subsidiary of DFSC. We earned $32,138, $24,972 and $44,818 in
interest on these accounts during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

4 — Business Combinations

During 2004, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Le Mars and
Peninsula. These acquisitions have been accounted for as business
combinations in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations.”

In June 2002, the Mutual Company consummated an affiliation with Le
Mars. As part of the affiliation, the Mutual Company entered into a
management agreement with and made a $4.0 million surplus note
investment in Le Mars. During 2003, Le Mars’ board of directors
adopted a plan of conversion to convert to a stock insurance company.
Following policyholder and regulatory approval of the plan of
conversion, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Le Mars as of
January 1, 2004 for approximately $12.9 million in cash, including
payment of the principal amount of the surplus note ($4.0 million) and
accrued interest ($392,740) to the Mutual Company. The operating
results of Le Mars have been included in our consolidated financial
statements since January 1, 2004.

The acquisition of Le Mars enables us to conduct our insurance
business in four Midwest states. Le Mars, which was organized under
the laws of Iowa in 1901, operates as a property and casualty insurer in
Iowa, Nebraska, Oklahoma and South Dakota. Personal lines coverages
represent a majority of Le Mars' premiums written, with the balance
coming from farmowners and mercantile and service businesses. Le
Mars' largest lines of business are private passenger automobile liability
and physical damage; its other principal lines are homeowners and
commercial multi-peril. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, Le Mars had net premiums earned of $17.9 million and $20.5
million, respectively. Le Mars’ surplus and total admitted assets on a
statutory basis as of December 31, 2003 were $12.0 million and $37.0
million, respectively. The purchase price of Le Mars was based upon an
independent valuation as of July 31, 2003. In applying GAAP purchase
accounting standards as of January 1, 2004, we recognized an
extraordinary gain in the amount of $5.4 million related to unallocated
negative goodwill resulting from this acquisition. A substantial portion
of this unallocated negative goodwill was generated by the recognition
of anticipated federal income tax benefits that we expect to realize over
the allowable 20-year carryover period by offsetting the net operating
loss carryover obtained as part of the acquisition of Le Mars against
taxable income generated by our consolidated affiliates. We have
determined that a valuation allowance is required for a portion of the
acquired net operating loss carryover, because federal tax laws limit the
amount of such carryover that can be utilized. Other factors that
generated negative goodwill included favorable operating results and
increases in the market values of invested assets in the period between
the valuation date and the acquisition date.

As of January 1, 2004, we purchased all of the outstanding stock of
Peninsula Indemnity Company and The Peninsula Insurance Company,
both of which are organized under Maryland law, with headquarters in
Salisbury, Maryland, from Folksamerica Holding Company, Inc.
(“Folksamerica”), a part of the White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd.,
for a price in cash equal to 107.5% of Peninsula's GAAP stockholders'
equity as of the closing of the acquisition, or approximately $23.5
million. The operating results of Peninsula have been included in our
consolidated financial statements since January 1, 2004.

Peninsula expands our presence in existing markets, operating primarily
in Maryland, Delaware and Virginia. Peninsula specializes in private
passenger automobile coverages and also writes homeowners,
commercial multi-peril, workers' compensation and commercial
automobile coverages. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, Peninsula had net premiums earned of $32.7 million and $29.7
million, respectively. Peninsula's surplus and total admitted assets on a
statutory basis as of December 31, 2003 were $19.5 million and $52.6
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million, respectively. We recorded goodwill of $449,968 related to this
acquisition, none of which is expected to be deductible for federal
income tax purposes. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement
with Folksamerica, Folksamerica has guaranteed us against any
deficiency in excess of $1.5 million in the loss and loss expense
reserves of Peninsula as of January 1, 2004. Any such deficiency will be
based on a final actuarial review of the development of such reserves to
be conducted four years after January 1, 2004. The maximum
obligation of Folksamerica to us under this guarantee is $4.0 million.

The following is a summary of the estimated fair values of the net
assets acquired at the date of each acquisition based on purchase price
allocations:

Le Mars Peninsula
($ in thousands)

Assets acquired:
Investments $31,913 $45,644
Premiums receivable 3,699 4,913
Reinsurance receivable 3,602 4,474
Other 5,276 5,720

Total assets acquired 44,490 60,751
Liabilities assumed:

Losses and loss expenses 16,476 19,447
Unearned premiums 7,734 12,563
Other 1,983 5,281

Total liabilities assumed 26,193 37,291
Total net assets acquired $18,297 $23,460

Our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2004 include the operations of Le Mars and Peninsula from January 1,
2004, the date of their acquisition. The following table presents our
unaudited pro forma historical results for the year ended December 31,
2003 as if these purchased entities had been acquired at January 1, 2003:

($ in thousands, except per share data)

Total revenues $266,778
Income before income tax expense and extraordinary item 26,542
Income tax expense 7,530
Income before extraordinary item 19,012
Basic earnings per share before extraordinary item 1.69
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinary item 1.64

The above pro forma earnings per share were calculated as if the
proceeds of approximately 1.7 million Class A common shares issued on
December 1, 2003 (representing only those proceeds used to fund the
acquisitions) were received on January 1, 2003 and as if the
corresponding common shares were included in weighted average
shares outstanding from that date. The pro forma results do not include
the impact of an extraordinary item in the amount of approximately $5.2
million related to unallocated negative goodwill that would have resulted
from the Le Mars acquisition.

The unaudited pro forma results above have been prepared for
comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of the
results of operations that actually would have resulted had the
acquisitions occurred at January 1, 2003, nor are they necessarily
indicative of future operating results.

5 — Investments

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of fixed maturities and
equity securities at December 31, 2004 and 2003, are as follows:

2004
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Held to Maturity Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations
and agencies $ 60,219,180 $ 13,107 $ 683,647 $ 59,548,640

Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions 76,651,761 1,867,257 93,018 78,426,000

Corporate securities 27,149,096 1,138,760 68,856 28,219,000
Mortgage-backed

securities 18,553,747 159,462 218,367 18,494,842
Totals $182,573,784 $3,178,586 $1,063,888 $184,688,482

2004
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Available for Sale Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations
and agencies $ 74,843,822 $ 459,249 $ 386,261 $ 74,916,810

Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions 108,777,575 3,682,063 13,538 112,446,100

Corporate securities 30,378,728 1,063,247 89,925 31,352,050
Mortgage-backed

securities 8,071,679 22,937 52,254 8,042,362
Equity securities 30,770,759 3,331,747 597,530 33,504,976

Totals $252,842,563 $8,559,243 $1,139,508 $260,262,298

2003
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Held to Maturity Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations
and agencies $ 29,130,684 $ 66,050 $368,967 $ 28,827,767

Canadian government
obligation 499,630 25,370 — 525,000

Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions 45,187,284 1,117,513 60,847 46,243,950

Corporate securities 25,192,044 2,086,465 9 27,278,500
Mortgage-backed

securities 13,041,142 287,732 71,089 13,257,785
Totals $113,050,784 $3,583,130 $500,912 $116,133,002
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2003
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Available for Sale Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations
and agencies $ 69,481,186 $1,094,878 $ 68,714 $ 70,507,350

Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions 81,104,794 3,281,260 604 84,385,450

Corporate securities 28,766,844 1,932,256 — 30,699,100
Mortgage-backed

securities 12,744,548 99,886 2,997 12,841,437
Equity securities 22,890,367 1,897,441 77,403 24,710,405

Totals $214,987,739 $8,305,721 $149,718 $223,143,742

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturities at
December 31, 2004, by contractual maturity, are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated
Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Held to maturity
Due in one year or less $ 3,707,192 $ 3,742,000
Due after one year through five years 70,732,331 70,959,190
Due after five years through ten years 18,801,384 19,120,000
Due after ten years 70,779,130 72,372,450
Mortgage-backed securities 18,553,747 18,494,842

Total held to maturity $182,573,784 $184,688,482

Available for sale
Due in one year or less $ 10,660,910 $ 10,760,350
Due after one year through five years 84,659,230 85,618,330
Due after five years through ten years 54,204,245 56,051,580
Due after ten years 64,475,740 66,284,700
Mortgage-backed securities 8,071,679 8,042,362

Total available for sale $222,071,804 $226,757,322

The amortized cost of fixed maturities on deposit with various
regulatory authorities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 amounted to
$8,566,784 and $5,095,211, respectively.

Investments in affiliates consisted of the following at December 31,
2004 and 2003:

2004 2003
DFSC $7,935,741 $5,963,816
Other 929,000 774,000
Total $8,864,741 $6,737,816

We made additional equity investments in DFSC in the amount of
$2,250,000 and $3,500,000 during 2004 and 2003, respectively. Other
expenses in our consolidated statements of income include $182,128,
$226,000 and $22,613 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
representing our share of DFSC losses. In addition, other

comprehensive income (loss) in our statements of comprehensive
income includes net unrealized (gains) losses of $95,947, $77,598 and
$(22,535) for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, representing our
share of DFSC unrealized investment (gains) losses. 

Other investment in affiliates represents our investment in statutory
trusts that hold our subordinated debentures as discussed in Note 9.

Net investment income, consisting primarily of interest and dividends,
is attributable to the following sources:

2004 2003 2002
Fixed maturities $16,540,611 $13,255,492 $14,285,049
Equity securities 989,966 834,578 804,087
Short-term investments 524,172 523,527 564,738
Other 30,770 29,250 29,249
Investment income 18,085,519 14,642,847 15,683,123
Investment expenses (2,178,791) (1,326,911) (1,101,871)
Net investment income $15,906,728 $13,315,936 $14,581,252

Gross realized gains and losses from investments and the change in the
difference between fair value and cost of investments, before applicable
income taxes, are as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Gross realized gains:

Fixed maturities $ 458,389 $1,002,461 $ 128,714
Equity securities 1,252,075 637,856 911,994

1,710,464 1,640,317 1,040,708
Gross realized losses:

Fixed maturities 35,952 33,759 106,789
Equity securities 208,292 238,527 789,729

244,244 272,286 896,518
Net realized gains $ 1,466,220 $1,368,031 $ 144,190

Change in difference between
fair value and cost of
investments:
Fixed maturities $ (2,617,967) $ (901,290) $5,253,785
Equity securities 914,179 1,554,745 (637,585)

$ (1,703,788) $ 653,455 $4,616,200

We held fixed maturities and equity securities with unrealized losses
representing declines that we considered temporary at December 31,
2004 as follows:

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations and
agencies $ 80,588,500 $ 940,084 $5,370,000 $129,824

Obligations of states 
and political 
subdivisions 13,056,950 106,506 5,000 50

Corporate securities 12,433,300 158,781 — —
Mortgage-backed

securities 15,734,625 151,952 3,584,117 118,669
Equity securities 5,947,354 540,030 292,500 57,500

Totals $127,760,729 $1,897,353 $9,251,617 $306,043
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The unrealized losses in our fixed maturities, all of which are rated
investment grade, were primarily due to the impact of higher market
interest rates rather than a decline in credit quality. There were 12 held-
to-maturity fixed maturities and two U.S. government agency preferred
equity securities in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
The fixed maturities and equity securities with unrealized losses have
not been significantly below cost for continuous amounts of time, and
we determined that the unrealized losses are temporary in nature based
upon the factors we consider in determining possible impairment.

We held fixed maturities and equity securities with unrealized losses
representing declines that we considered temporary at December 31,
2003 as follows:

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of
U.S. government
corporations and
agencies $23,155,000 $437,681 $ — $ —

Obligations of states 
and political 
subdivisions 5,574,000 61,451 — —

Corporate securities 500,000 9 — —
Mortgage-backed

securities 5,820,168 64,791 560,716 9,295
Equity securities 1,275,737 38,048 898,130 39,355

Totals $36,324,905 $601,980 $1,458,846 $48,650

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, certain investments trading below cost
had declined on an other than temporary basis. Losses of $6,650,
$237,724 and $378,672 were included in net realized investment gains
for these investments in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

During 2003, we sold certain bonds that had been classified as held to
maturity due to a series of rating agency downgrades related to these
securities. These bonds had an amortized cost of $1.8 million, and the
sale resulted in a realized gain of $165,564. During 2002, we sold
certain bonds that had been classified as held to maturity due to
significant deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness. These bonds
had an amortized cost of $488,901, and the sale resulted in a realized
loss of $73,901. There were no other sales or transfers from the held to
maturity portfolio in 2004, 2003 or 2002.

We have no derivative instruments or hedging activities.

6 — Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Changes in deferred policy acquisition costs are as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Balance, January 1 $16,223,765 $14,567,070 $13,604,215
Acquisition costs deferred 45,467,995 32,495,695 30,435,855
Amortization charged

to earnings (39,434,000) (30,839,000) (29,473,000)
Balance, December 31 $22,257,760 $16,223,765 $14,567,070

7 — Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of
the following:

Estimated
Useful

2004 2003 Life
Office equipment $ 6,135,142 $ 5,293,302 5-15 years
Automobiles 1,101,055 903,162 3 years
Real estate 3,848,772 2,676,636 15-50 years
Software 544,086 325,323 5 years

11,629,055 9,198,423
Accumulated depreciation (6,120,215) (5,046,752)

$ 5,508,840 $ 4,151,671

Depreciation expense for 2004, 2003, and 2002 amounted to $932,987,
$650,200 and $690,263, respectively.

8 — Liability for Losses and Loss Expenses

Activity in the liability for losses and loss expenses is summarized as
follows:

2004 2003 2002
Balance at January 1 $217,914,057 $210,691,752 $179,839,905
Less reinsurance

recoverable (79,017,987) (79,583,319) (65,295,790)
Net balance at January 1 138,896,070 131,108,433 114,544,115
Acquisitions of Le Mars

and Peninsula 28,843,140 — —
Net balance at January 1

as adjusted 167,739,210 131,108,433 114,544,115
Incurred related to:

Current year 171,384,964 126,693,421 122,433,653
Prior years (7,243,596) (450,110) 6,834,033

Total incurred 164,141,368 126,243,311 129,267,686
Paid related to:

Current year 96,041,306 72,187,103 67,655,902
Prior years 64,408,705 46,268,571 45,047,466

Total paid 160,450,011 118,455,674 112,703,368
Net balance at 

December 31 171,430,567 138,896,070 131,108,433
Plus reinsurance

recoverable 95,759,493 79,017,987 79,583,319
Balance at December 31 $267,190,060 $217,914,057 $210,691,752

We recognized an increase (decrease) in the liability for losses and loss
expenses of prior years of $(7.2 million), $(450,110) and $6.8 million in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These developments are primarily
attributable to variations from expected claim severity in the private
passenger and commercial automobile liability, workers’ compensation
and commercial multi-peril lines of business. Included in the 2004
development are decreases in the liability for losses and loss expenses
of prior years for Le Mars and Peninsula of $3.6 million and $1.4
million, respectively, largely due to favorable settlement of open claims.
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9 — Borrowings

Line of Credit

On November 25, 2003, we entered into a credit agreement with
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company (“M&T”) relating to a four-
year $35.0 million unsecured, revolving line of credit. As of December
31, 2004, we may borrow up to $35.0 million at interest rates equal to
M&T’s current prime rate or the then current London Interbank
Eurodollar bank rate (LIBOR) plus between 1.50% and 1.75%,
depending on our leverage ratio. In addition, we pay a fee of 0.15% per
annum on the loan commitment amount, regardless of usage. The
agreement requires our compliance with certain covenants, which
include minimum levels of our net worth, leverage ratio and statutory
surplus and A.M. Best ratings of our insurance subsidiaries. During the
year ended December 31, 2004, there were no borrowings outstanding,
and we complied with all requirements of the agreement.

At December 31, 2002, pursuant to a credit agreement dated
December 29, 1995, and amended as of July 27, 1998, with Fleet
National Bank, we had unsecured borrowings of $19.8 million. Such
borrowings were made in connection with various acquisitions and
capital contributions to our subsidiaries. The borrowings under this
line of credit were repaid during 2003, and this credit agreement was
terminated on December 2, 2003.

Subordinated Debentures

On May 15, 2003, we received $15.0 million in net proceeds from the
issuance of subordinated debentures. The debentures mature on May
15, 2033 and are callable at our option, at par, after five years. The
debentures carry an interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate
plus 4.10%, which is adjustable quarterly. At December 31, 2004, the
interest rate on these debentures was 6.38%, and is next subject to
adjustment on February 15, 2005. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
our consolidated balance sheets included an investment in a trust of
$464,000 and subordinated debentures of $15.5 million related to this
transaction.

On October 29, 2003, we received $10.0 million in net proceeds from
the issuance of subordinated debentures. The debentures mature on
October 29, 2033 and are callable at our option, at par, after five years.
The debentures carry an interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR
rate plus 3.85%, which is adjustable quarterly. At December 31, 2004,
the interest rate on these debentures was 5.98%, and is next subject to
adjustment on January 29, 2005. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
our consolidated balance sheets included an investment in a trust of
$310,000 and subordinated debentures of $10.3 million related to this
transaction.

On May 24, 2004, we received $5.0 million in net proceeds from the
issuance of subordinated debentures. The debentures mature on May
24, 2034 and are callable at our option, at par, after five years. The
debentures carry an interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate
plus 3.85%, which is adjustable quarterly. At December 31, 2004, the
interest rate on these debentures was 6.21%, and is next subject to
adjustment on February 24, 2005. As of December 31, 2004, our
consolidated balance sheet included an investment in a trust of $155,000
and subordinated debentures of $5.2 million related to this transaction.

10 — Reinsurers

Unaffiliated Reinsurers
In addition to the ceded reinsurance in place with the Mutual Company,
our insurance subsidiaries have other reinsurance in place, principally
with four unaffiliated reinsurers. We monitor the financial strength of
our unaffiliated reinsurers, requiring that companies rated by A.M. Best
Company maintain a rating of A- or higher and that foreign reinsurers
not rated by A.M. Best Company maintain a level of financial strength
equivalent to companies qualifying for an A.M. Best Company rating of
A- or higher. The following amounts represent ceded reinsurance
transactions with unaffiliated reinsurers during 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
Premiums written $22,016,464 $10,908,851 $10,772,473
Premiums earned $23,704,363 $11,535,468 $10,776,702
Losses and loss expenses $14,324,616 $10,646,851 $13,693,184
Prepaid reinsurance premiums $ 1,679,421 $ 710,057 $ 1,336,674
Liability for losses and

loss expenses $27,903,998 $15,361,192 $18,923,639

Total Reinsurance
The following amounts represent the total of all ceded reinsurance
transactions with both affiliated and unaffiliated reinsurers during 2004,
2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
Premiums earned $90,880,931 $70,429,560 $58,817,518
Losses and loss expenses $60,783,489 $56,664,098 $55,526,159
Prepaid reinsurance premiums $35,907,376 $30,691,654 $27,853,996
Liability for losses and

loss expenses $95,759,493 $79,017,987 $79,583,319

The following amounts represent the effect of reinsurance on premiums
written for 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
Direct $202,064,323 $118,605,732 $111,767,756
Assumed 174,657,504 161,642,112 139,814,138
Ceded (93,439,390) (73,267,218) (57,078,047)
Net premiums written $283,282,437 $206,980,626 $194,503,847

The following amounts represent the effect of reinsurance on premiums
earned for 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
Direct $188,665,453 $114,154,202 $110,412,498
Assumed 168,054,072 153,068,054 134,246,213
Ceded (90,880,931) (70,429,560) (58,817,518)
Net premiums earned $265,838,594 $196,792,696 $185,841,193
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11 — Income Taxes

The provision for income tax consists of the following:

2004 2003 2002
Current $11,290,908 $ 7,495,130 $ 5,071,516
Deferred (405,256) (352,731) (579,654)
Federal tax provision $10,885,652 $ 7,142,399 $ 4,491,862

The effective tax rate is different from the amount computed at the
statutory federal rate of 35% for 2004 and 2003 and 34% for 2002. The
reasons for such difference and the related tax effects are as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Income before

income taxes $37,054,251 $25,436,375 $16,494,584
Computed “expected”

taxes 12,968,988 8,902,731 5,608,159
Tax-exempt interest (2,302,247) (1,824,830) (1,304,197)
Dividends received deduction (106,836) (49,147) (31,830)
Other, net 325,747 113,645 219,730
Federal income

tax provision $10,885,652 $ 7,142,399 $ 4,491,862

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant
portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, are as follows:

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:

Unearned premium $ 9,708,475 $ 7,246,680
Loss reserves 6,916,375 5,943,747
Net operating loss carryforward -

acquired companies 4,824,300 1,459,722
Other 1,119,355 1,449,747

Total gross deferred assets 22,568,505 16,099,896
Less valuation allowance (770,799) —

Net deferred tax assets $21,797,706 $16,099,896
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation expense $ 316,035 $ 331,291
Deferred policy acquisition costs 7,790,216 5,678,318
Salvage recoverable 211,342 208,948
Net unrealized gains 2,557,673 2,848,930

Total gross deferred liabilities $10,875,266 $ 9,067,487
Net deferred tax asset $10,922,440 $ 7,032,409

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that
some portion of the tax asset will not be realized. Management has
determined that a valuation allowance of $770,799 related to a portion
of the net operating loss carryforward of Le Mars should be established
at January 1, 2004. Management has determined that it is not required
to establish a valuation allowance for the other net deferred tax assets
of $21,797,706 and $16,099,896 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, since it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets
will be realized through reversals of existing temporary differences,
future taxable income, carrybacks to taxable income in prior years and
the implementation of tax planning strategies.

As a result of the acquisitions of Le Mars and Peninsula, net deferred
tax assets of $3,193,500 were acquired.

At December 31, 2004, we have a net operating loss carryforward of
$13.8 million, which is available to offset our taxable income. Of this
amount, $10.5 million will begin to expire in 2009 and is subject to an
annual limitation in the amount that we can use in any one year of
approximately $376,000.  The remaining $3.3 million will expire in 2012
and is subject to an annual limitation of approximately $903,000.

12 — Stockholders’ Equity

On April 19, 2001 our stockholders approved an amendment to our
Certificate of Incorporation. Among other things, the amendment
reclassified our common stock as Class B common stock and effected a
one-for-three reverse split of our Class B common stock effective April
19, 2001. The amendment also authorized a new class of common
stock with one-tenth of a vote per share designated as Class A common
stock. Our Board of Directors also approved a dividend of two shares of
Class A common stock for each share of Class B common stock, after
the one-for-three reverse split, held of record at the close of business
April 19, 2001.

Each share of Class A common stock outstanding at the time of the
declaration of any dividend or other distribution payable in cash upon the
shares of Class B common stock is entitled to a dividend or distribution
payable at the same time and to stockholders of record on the same date
in an amount at least 10% greater than any dividend declared upon each
share of Class B common stock. In the event of our merger or
consolidation with or into another entity, the holders of Class A common
stock and the holders of Class B common stock are entitled to receive
the same per share consideration in such merger or consolidation. In the
event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, any assets available
to common stockholders will be distributed pro rata to the holders of
Class A common stock and Class B common stock.

On February 17, 2005, our Board of Directors approved a four-for-three
split of our Class A common stock and our Class B common stock to
be effected in the form of a 33-1/3% stock dividend to stockholders of
record at the close of business March 1, 2005 and payable on March
28, 2005. 
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13 — Stock Compensation Plans

Equity Incentive Plans
During 1996, we adopted an Equity Incentive Plan for Employees.
During 2001, we adopted a nearly identical plan that made a total of
1,500,000 shares of Class A common stock available for issuance. Each
plan provides for the granting of awards by the Board of Directors in
the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock or
any combination of the above. The plans provide that stock options may
become exercisable up to 10 years from date of grant, with an option
price not less than fair market value on date of grant. No stock
appreciation rights have been issued.

During 1996, we adopted an Equity Incentive Plan for Directors. During
2001, we adopted a nearly identical plan that made 200,000 shares of
Class A common stock available for issuance. Awards may be made in
the form of stock options, and the plan additionally provides for the
issuance of 175 shares of restricted stock to each director on the first
business day of January in each year. As of December 31, 2004, we
have 36,666 unexercised options under these plans. Additionally 1,925,
1,925 and 2,100 shares of restricted stock were issued on January 2,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

All options issued prior to 2001 were converted to options on Class A
and Class B common stock as a result of our recapitalization. No further
shares are available for plans in effect prior to 2001.

Information regarding activity in our stock option plans is presented
below.

Weighted-Average
Number of Exercise Price

Options Per Share

Outstanding at December 31, 2001 1,934,467 $13.27
Granted – 2002 10,000 14.00
Exercised – 2002 (7,684) 8.00
Forfeited – 2002 (18,334) 14.36
Expired – 2002 (524,448) 13.50

Outstanding at December 31, 2002 1,394,001 $13.43
Granted – 2003 667,500 12.00
Exercised – 2003 (91,482) 8.15
Forfeited – 2003 (14,000) 10.57
Expired – 2003 (476,667) 18.00

Outstanding at December 31, 2003 1,479,352 $11.72
Granted – 2004 34,500 18.84
Exercised – 2004 (591,332) 10.30
Forfeited – 2004 (29,838) 11.84

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 892,682 $12.94
Exercisable at:

December 31, 2002 1,085,000 $13.29
December 31, 2003 883,707 $11.11
December 31, 2004 683,419 $12.97

Options available for future grants at December 31, 2004 are 577,386.

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options at
December 31, 2004:

Number of Weighted-Average Number of
Exercise Options Remaining Options

Price Outstanding Contractual Life Exercisable
$ 9.00 1,500 1.5 year 1,500
12.00 571,849 3.5 years 381,252
14.00 292,333 1.5 years 292,333
18.25 5,000 3.5 years 1,667
20.92 2,000 5.0 years —
21.00 5,000 4.0 years 1,667
22.05 7,500 4.5 years 2,500
23.84 7,500 4.5 years 2,500
Total 892,682 683,419

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

During 1996, we adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan. During
2001, we adopted a nearly identical plan that made 300,000 shares of
Class A common stock available for issuance.

The new plan extends over a 10-year period and provides for shares to
be offered to all eligible employees at a purchase price equal to the
lesser of 85% of the fair market value of our Class A common stock on
the last day before the first day of the enrollment period (June 1 and
December 1) of the plan or 85% of the fair market value of our Class A
common stock on the last day of the subscription period (June 30 and
December 31). A summary of plan activity follows:

Shares Issued
Price Shares

January 1, 2002 $ 8.8485 12,769
July 1, 2002 8.7720 10,520
January 1, 2003 9.1375 9,425
July 1, 2003 10.1575 8,776
January 1, 2004 11.4495 7,637
July 1, 2004 17.0085 5,009

On January 1, 2005, we issued an additional 6,068 shares at a price of
$17.5865 per share under this plan.

Agency Stock Purchase Plans

On December 31, 1996, we adopted an Agency Stock Purchase Plan.
During 2001, we adopted a nearly identical plan that made 300,000
shares of Class A common stock available for issuance. The plan
provides for agents of our affiliated companies to invest up to $12,000
per subscription period (April 1 to September 30 and October 1 to
March 31) under various methods. Stock is issued at the end of the
subscription period at a price equal to 90% of the average market price
during the last ten trading days of the subscription period. During
2004, 2003 and 2002, 32,754, 28,547 and 16,310 shares, respectively,
were issued under this plan. Expense recognized under the plan was
not material.
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14 — Statutory Net Income, Capital and Surplus
and Dividend Restrictions

The following is selected information, as filed with insurance regulatory
authorities, for our insurance subsidiaries as determined in accordance
with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by such insurance
regulatory authorities:

2004 2003 2002

Atlantic States
Statutory capital

and surplus $127,219,109 $109,854,398 $95,405,603
Statutory unassigned

surplus $ 73,558,245 $ 56,193,534 $46,744,739
Statutory net income $ 16,342,671 $ 13,272,651 $10,646,804

Southern
Statutory capital

and surplus $ 50,253,802 $ 40,649,495 $31,243,897
Statutory unassigned

surplus (deficit) $ 1,136,217 $ (1,968,090) $’(6,373,688)
Statutory net income $ 2,868,102 $ 5,275,909 $ 2,505,891

Le Mars
Statutory capital

and surplus $ 17,103,902 $ 11,987,214 $12,673,209
Statutory unassigned

surplus $ 4,511,162 $ 7,987,214 $ 8,673,209
Statutory net income 

(loss) $ 3,268,819 $ (728,329) $ 7,006

Peninsula
Statutory capital

and surplus $ 23,176,096 $ 19,477,027 $17,932,895
Statutory unassigned

surplus $ 5,576,682 $ 3,125,533 $ 1,581,401
Statutory net income $ 3,781,849 $ 1,513,794 $ 885,681

Our principal source of cash for payment of dividends are dividends
from our insurance subsidiaries that are required by law to maintain
certain minimum capital and surplus on a statutory basis and are
subject to regulations under which payment of dividends from statutory
surplus is restricted and may require prior approval of their domiciliary
insurance regulatory authorities. Our insurance subsidiaries are also
subject to Risk Based Capital (RBC) requirements that may further
impact their ability to pay dividends. At December 31, 2004, the
companies’ statutory capital and surplus were substantially above the
RBC requirements. Amounts available for distribution as dividends to us
without prior approval of insurance regulatory authorities in 2005 are
$16,342,671 from Atlantic States, $2,868,102 from Southern,
$1,710,390 from Le Mars and $2,317,610 from Peninsula.

15 — Reconciliation of Statutory Filings to 
Amounts Reported Herein

Our insurance subsidiaries are required to file statutory financial
statements with state insurance regulatory authorities. Accounting

principles used to prepare these statutory financial statements differ
from financial statements prepared on the basis of generally accepted
accounting principles.

Reconciliations of statutory net income and capital and surplus, as
determined using statutory accounting principles, to the amounts
included in the accompanying financial statements are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Statutory net income of
insurance subsidiaries $ 26,261,441 $ 18,548,560 $ 13,152,695

Increases (decreases):
Deferred policy

acquisition costs 6,033,995 1,656,695 962,855
Deferred federal

income taxes 405,256 352,731 579,654
Salvage and subrogation

recoverable (112,182) (167,627) (863,313)
Consolidating eliminations

and adjustments (579,343) (8,099,197) (11,264,732)
Parent-only 

net income (loss) (394,898) 6,002,814 9,435,563
Net income as

reported herein $ 31,614,269 $ 18,293,976 $ 12,002,722

December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Statutory capital and 
surplus of
insurance subsidiaries $217,752,909 $150,503,893 $126,649,500

Increases (decreases):
Deferred policy

acquisition costs 22,257,760 16,223,765 14,567,070
Deferred federal

income taxes (3,855,261) (4,268,453) (3,499,656)
Salvage and subrogation

recoverable 8,146,694 7,167,008 7,334,635
Non-admitted assets and

other adjustments, net 1,121,225 907,955 735,946
Fixed maturities 6,207,157 6,521,246 7,517,290
Parent-only equity and

other adjustments (8,926,170) 31,593,818 (20,121,935)
Stockholders’ equity as

reported herein $242,704,314 $208,649,232 $133,182,850

16 — Supplementary Cash Flow Information

The following reflects income taxes and interest paid during 2004, 2003
and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
Income taxes $12,905,000 $7,356,674 $4,410,000
Interest $ 1,528,655 $1,291,992 $1,047,237
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17 — Earnings Per Share

The following information illustrates the computation of net income,
outstanding shares and earnings per share on both a basic and diluted
basis for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Weighted-
Average Earnings

Net Shares Per
Income Outstanding Share

2004:
Basic $31,614,269 13,159,435 $2.40
Effect of stock options — 475,737 (.08)
Diluted $31,614,269 13,635,172 $2.32

2003:
Basic $18,293,976 9,570,872 $1.91
Effect of stock options — 323,972 (.06)
Diluted $18,293,976 9,894,844 $1.85

2002:
Basic $12,002,722 9,085,914 $1.32
Effect of stock options — 107,199 (.01)
Diluted $12,002,722 9,193,113 $1.31

The following options to purchase shares of common stock were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the
exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price:

2004 2003 2002
Options excluded from

diluted earnings per share 7,500 — 939,167

18 — Condensed Financial Information of Parent Company

Condensed Balance Sheets
($ in thousands)

December 31, 2004 2003
Assets
Fixed-maturity investments $ 4,120 $ 1,987
Investment in subsidiaries/affiliates

(equity method) 259,898 183,402
Short-term investments 5,585 47,559
Cash 1,581 365
Property and equipment 1,293 1,579
Other 3,226 1,345

Total assets $275,703 $236,237

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Cash dividends declared to stockholders $ 1,567 $ 1,379
Subordinated debentures 30,929 25,774
Other 503 435

Total liabilities 32,999 27,588
Stockholders’ equity 242,704 208,649

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $275,703 $236,237

Condensed Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
($ in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Statements of Income
Revenues
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 950 $ 7,000 $10,400
Other 1,242 1,034 797

Total revenues 2,192 8,034 11,197
Expenses
Operating expenses 1,700 1,345 1,057
Interest 1,614 1,320 1,139

Total expenses 3,314 2,665 2,196
Income (loss) before income tax benefit 

and equity in undistributed net 
income of subsidiaries (1,122) 5,369 9,001

Income tax benefit (727) (634) (435)
Income (loss) before equity in

undistributed net income 
of subsidiaries (395) 6,003 9,436

Equity in undistributed
net income 
of subsidiaries 32,009 12,291 2,567

Net income $31,614 $18,294 $12,003

Statements of Comprehensive Income
Net income $31,614 $18,294 $12,003
Other comprehensive income (loss),

net of tax
Unrealized gain (loss) - parent (2) (42) 15
Unrealized gain (loss) - subsidiaries (539) 421 2,035

Other comprehensive income (loss),
net of tax (541) 379 2,050

Comprehensive income $31,073 $18,673 $14,053

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
($ in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $31,614 $18,294 $12,003
Adjustments:

Equity in undistributed net
income of subsidiaries (32,009) (12,291) (2,567)

Other 731 (4,137) 795
Net adjustments (31,278) (16,428) (1,772)

Net cash provided 336 1,866 10,231
Cash flows from investing activities:

Net purchase of fixed maturities (2,084) (1,938) —
Net sale (purchase) of short-term

investments 41,974 (47,559) —
Net purchase of property and

equipment (246) (433) (480)
Investment in subsidiaries (45,216) (14,274) —
Other 334 (981) 38

Net cash used (5,238) (65,185) (442)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash dividends paid (5,985) (3,868) (3,509)
Issuance of common stock 6,948 60,974 1,721
Issuance of subordinated

debentures 5,155 25,774 —
Line of credit, net — (19,800) (7,800)

Net cash provided (used) 6,118 63,080 (9,588)
Net change in cash 1,216 (239) 201

Cash at beginning of year 365 604 403
Cash at end of year $ 1,581 $ 365 $ 604
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19 — Segment Information

As an underwriter of property and casualty insurance, we have three
reportable segments which consist of the investment function, the
personal lines of insurance and the commercial lines of insurance.
Using independent agents, we market personal lines of insurance to
individuals and commercial lines of insurance to small and medium-
sized businesses.

We evaluate the performance of the personal lines and commercial lines
primarily based upon underwriting results as determined under
statutory accounting practices (SAP) for our total business.

Assets are not allocated to the personal and commercial lines and are
reviewed in total by management for purposes of decision making. We
operate only in the United States and no single customer or agent
provides 10 percent or more of revenues.

Financial data by segment is as follows:

2004 2003 2002
($ in thousands)

Revenues
Premiums earned:

Commercial lines $ 99,657 $ 71,471 $ 66,003
Personal lines 169,322 125,322 119,838

Total SAP
premiums earned 268,979 196,793 185,841

GAAP adjustments (3,140) — —
Total GAAP

premiums earned 265,839 196,793 185,841
Net investment income 15,907 13,316 14,581
Realized investment gains 1,466 1,368 144
Other 4,577 3,515 3,238

Total revenues $287,789 $214,992 $203,804

2004 2003 2002
($ in thousands)

Income before income taxes
and extraordinary item:

Underwriting income (loss):
Commercial lines $ 6,209 $ 7,173 $ 6,326
Personal lines 10,100 2,004 (5,056)

SAP underwriting
income 16,309 9,177 1,270

GAAP adjustments 2,109 692 (558)
GAAP underwriting

income 18,418 9,869 712
Net investment income 15,907 13,316 14,581
Realized investment gains 1,466 1,368 144
Other 1,263 883 1,058

Income before income taxes
and extraordinary item $ 37,054 $ 25,436 $ 16,495

20 — Guaranty Fund and Other Insurance-Related Assessments

We accrue for guaranty fund and other insurance-related assessments
in accordance with Statement of Position (SOP) 97-3, “Accounting by
Insurance and Other Enterprises for Insurance-Related Assessments.”
SOP 97-3 provides guidance for determining when an entity should
recognize a liability for guaranty fund and other insurance-related
assessments, how to measure that liability and when an asset may be
recognized for the recovery of such assessments through premium tax
offsets or policy surcharges. Our liabilities for guaranty fund and other
insurance-related assessments were $4,140,878 and $3,556,227 at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These liabilities included
$376,428 and $283,509 related to surcharges collected by us on behalf
of regulatory authorities for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

21— Interim Financial Data (unaudited)

2004
First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net premiums

earned $62,699,478 $65,498,402 $67,958,382 $69,682,332
Total revenues 68,001,661 70,692,422 73,613,653 75,480,902
Net losses and loss

expenses 40,371,057 39,961,021 42,285,455 41,523,835
Income before

extraordinary item 6,286,636 6,770,187 5,886,886 7,224,890
Extraordinary item 5,445,670 — — —
Net income 11,732,306 6,770,187 5,886,886 7,224,890
Basic earnings per

common share:
Income before

extraordinary item .49 .52 .44 .54
Extraordinary item .42 — — —
Net income .91 .52 .44 .54

Diluted earnings per
common share:

Income before
extraordinary item .47 .50 .43 .53

Extraordinary item .40 — — —
Net income .87 .50 .43 .53

2003
First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net premiums

earned $47,928,881 $48,433,689 $49,719,584 $50,710,542
Total revenues 52,185,419 52,826,818 54,285,753 55,694,338
Net losses and loss

expenses 31,850,515 29,658,466 32,759,356 31,974,974
Net income 3,844,432 5,268,953 4,001,385 5,179,206
Net income per

common share
Basic .42 .57 .43 .49
Diluted .41 .56 .40 .47
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as that term is defined in Rule 13a-

15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial

Officer, our management has conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,

based on the framework and criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission (the “COSO Framework”).

Based on our evaluation under the COSO Framework, our management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as

of December 31, 2004.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives because of its inherent

limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and

breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management

override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control

over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design

into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.

Because of its inherent limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all misstatements. Also, projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent

registered public accounting firm, as stated in their attestation report which is included herein. 

Donald H. Nikolaus
President and Chief Executive Officer

Ralph G. Spontak
Senior Vice President, Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

March 14, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Donegal Group Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that

Donegal Group Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal

Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Donegal Group Inc.’s

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in

all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment,

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's

internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have

a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Donegal Group Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,

2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also, in our opinion, Donegal Group Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance

sheets of Donegal Group Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income and

comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our report

dated March 14, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

March 14, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Donegal Group Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Donegal Group Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the

related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Donegal Group

Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the each of the years in the three-

year period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of

Donegal Group Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 14, 2005 expressed an

unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

March 14, 2005
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ANNUAL MEETING
April 21, 2005 at the Company’s headquarters
at 10:00 a.m.

FORM 10-K
A copy of Donegal Group’s Annual Report on Form 10-K will
be furnished free upon written request to Ralph G. Spontak,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, at the
corporate address.

MARKET INFORMATION
Donegal Group’s Class A common stock and Class B
common stock are traded on the Nasdaq National Market
under the symbols “DGICA” and “DGICB.” The following
table shows the dividends paid per share and the stock
price range for each quarter during 2004 and 2003:

Cash Dividend
Declared

Quarter High Low Per Share

2003 - Class A

1st $11.75 $ 9.50 $ —
2nd 15.20 10.98 .10
3rd 19.00 12.10 .11
4th 23.97 15.25 .22

2003 - Class B

1st $11.32 $10.72 $ —
2nd 13.79 10.35 .09
3rd 16.01 11.76 .10
4th 20.00 14.75 .20

2004 - Class A

1st $24.00 $17.70 $ —
2nd 22.92 18.63 .12
3rd 21.29 18.46 .12
4th 24.60 18.68 .24

2004 - Class B

1st $21.46 $17.00 $ —
2nd 22.25 18.94 .105
3rd 21.55 18.50 .105
4th 23.00 16.80 .21

CORPORATE OFFICES
1195 River Road
P.O. Box 302
Marietta, Pennsylvania 17547-0302
(800) 877-0600
E-mail Address: info@donegalgroup.com
Donegal Web Site: www.donegalgroup.com

TRANSFER AGENT
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43069
Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3069
(800) 317-4445
Web Site: www.equiserve.com
Hearing Impaired: TDD: 800-952-9245

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT 
AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
The Company offers a dividend
reinvestment and stock purchase plan
through its transfer agent.
For information contact:
Donegal Group Inc. 
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43069
Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3069

STOCKHOLDERS
The following represent the number of 
common stockholders of record 
as of December 31, 2004:

Class A common stock 740
Class B common stock 464
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